	State of Nevada
	
[image: image1.wmf] 

 



	Brian Sandoval

	Department of Administration
	
	Governor

	Purchasing Division
	
	

	515 E. Musser Street, Suite 300
	
	Greg Smith

	Carson City, NV  89701
	
	Administrator


	SUBJECT:
	Amendment 2 to Request for Proposal 3091

	RFP TITLE:
	Copiers, Printers and Related Devices

	DATE OF AMENDMENT:
	July 31, 2014

	DATE OF RFP RELEASE:
	June 10, 2014

	OPENING DATE:
	August 20, 2014

	OPENING TIME:
	2:00 PM

	CONTACT:
	Shannon Berry, Assistant Chief Procurement Officer


The following shall be a part of RFP 3091.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.

Revisions to RFP:

Section 3.4.1.7: 
Paper Supply equal to or greater than: 
A.  One (1) paper drawer for Segments 2 & 3 Desktop copiers; 

Section 3.4.2:
3.4.2.9

Windows Embedded Standard 7 Controller.
Section 3.4.3.8: 
3.4.3.7 
Must include network connectivity; and.

3.4.3.8

Multi-functional devices must copy, scan, and fax (or e-fax).

Section 5.4.2 Leasing, Rentals and Short-Term Rentals 

Awarded Vendors shallmay offer, according to each Participating Addendum, a minimum of the following financial vehicles, as defined within the resulting Contract at the following terms:  
	Financial Vehicle
	Standard Terms Offered

	Fair Market Value Lease

Operational Lease

Non-Cancelable Rental
Capital Lease
	36, 48, 60 Months

	Cancelable Rental
	24, 36 Months

	Short Term Rental
	Up to 18 months


Section 9.2.3.4
E. Copies of any vendor licensing agreements and/or hardware and software maintenance agreements. Provide a list of all vendor license agreement including hardware/software maintenance agreement.  Copies of all agreements should be available upon request by the Lead State or Participating Entity.
F. Copies of applicable certifications and/or licenses. List any other applicable certification and/or licenses, which shall be available upon request by the Lead State or Participating Entity.

Attachment I - Cost Schedule:

Below are updated Pricing Schedules for each Group.  Pricing for each proposed group must be provided as requested using these updated spreadsheets.

Group A Pricing Schedule

[image: image2.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group A Pricing Schedule-Rev 7-31-14.xls


Group B Pricing Schedule
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Group C Pricing Schedule
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Group D Pricing Schedule
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Group E Pricing Schedule
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Group F Pricing Schedule
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Second Set of Questions and Answers to RFP:

1. Regarding “operational” leases, some customers will want to utilize this leasing type, but also will want a buyout option. Please confirm if approved by the state during the Participating Amendment process that we able to offer an “end of term” buyout option for this leasing type.
Our definition of Operational lease is used to acquire devices on a relatively short term basis with no benefit of ownership to the lessee; no equipment buy-out will be considered. 

2. We understand that PO’s for software only can be submitted for existing equipment, unless restricted by a participating state or entity, however some customers will want to finance this purchase given budget conditions. Please confirm that we are able to offer this option if requested by the customer and allowed for by the Participating State
Yes, as long as the contractor provides the financing mechanism. 
3. Regarding the Model PA, once WSCA issues an initial version will vendors be allowed to add additional elements to the Vendor Specific Model PA in order to clarify certain points? Please describe how WSCA will distribute or make available the Vendor Model PA once completed.
Awardees will work with WSCA-NASPO on the structure of "their" model Participating Addendum.  Once a Master Agreement has been fully executed, WSCA-NASPO will send the awardee a "model" Participating Addendum to work with.
4. We understand vendors are to maintain timely and accurate invoicing. Furthermore, that the Service Level Agreement [SLA] is meant to be a model and that vendors are to offer their own specific SLA on a state by state basis. Please confirm that establishing a billing cure period, allowing a vendor time to address billing issues, is also an element that may be established through the Participating Amendment process.
Yes, if agreed to by the Participating Entity. 
5. Attachment D, Vendor Certifications, Section 4 States, “All proposal terms, including prices, will remain in effect for a minimum of 180 days after the proposal due date. In the case of the awarded vendor, all proposal terms, including prices, will remain in effect throughout the contract negotiation process.” We understand that the proposal must remain firm for 180 days but are confused by the phrase “throughout the contract negotiation process” as the negotiation process could cause either party to adjust a term or condition. Please elaborate on what is meant here.
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.

6. Regarding the purchase of software, some customers wish to acquire software to enhance a current process and potentially acquire equipment at a later date. Please confirm that customers are able to purchase software in this way if approved by the participating state.
No, software must be purchased with new or existing equipment only. 
7. The first tab in the pricing sheets for each group refers to “list pricing”. Is this a request to list the MSRP for those products or a request to identify “WSCA End User Pricing” once it has been discounted from MSRP?
MSRP pricing; see Revisions to RFP. 

8. Most customers that purchase scanners, request that the entire engagement which may include scanning, a fleet of MPS’s, etc, be centrally billed and maintained through a single vendor. Centralized billing and providing a single point of contact for service reduces the cost of conducting business which is important in the climate of shrinking budgets. On a practical level, it makes sense to treat Scanners similar to Wide Format units, and allow vendors to offer non-private labeled units as part of their bid response. This will also increase competition for scanners resulting in better prices for WSCA. We respectfully request that the RFP allow for non-private labeled scanners to be offered.
No. 
9. The new lease charts, in the Group Excel Pricing sheets, show cells for only 18, 24, 36, 48, 60 months rates. First, is it WSCA’s expectation that the 18 month rate only apply to the short term rental? Second, do all other options (24 through 60 months) apply to the five other financing options? Third, given that the updated price sheets have reduced the number of monthly terms, eliminating individual months, is there any guidance as to how vendors are suppose to calculate a coterminous monthly rate when customers add accessories? Or is this simply negotiated with an individual customer?
Yes.  Yes.  State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to answer.  This needs to be negotiated with the individual customer.
10. Short Term rentals may be used or refurbished. Used equipment is based on availability and thus is priced at the time it is required. Is it WSCA’s expectation to receive pricing for short term rentals at the time of bid submission or is this something we furnish upon request in the future?
Submit pricing for short term rental of new equipment with proposal.  Used or refurbished pricing will be provided to the Customer upon request. 
11. Section 5.4.2.3 - “Leases may be bought out and devices returned to the owning lessor, although fair market value, operational, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge. The termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments…” When customers decide to terminate a lease agreement, there may be past due amounts. Please confirm that any applicable past due amounts, as well as, balance of lease payments be included as the final termination charge is calculated.
Yes. 
12. Section 3.5.5.2 – “If the Customer or WSCA-NASPO has reason to believe that multiple and systemic billing errors exist, that cannot be corrected to the Customer’s or WSCA-NASPO’s satisfaction; the Customer or WSCA-NASPO may require an audit by a third party. If errors are found, the Awarded Vendor must reimburse the Customer or WSCA-NASPO for the cost of the auditor as well as correcting any billing errors.” Auditing is an important subject to both a customer and the vendor. Please confirm that we are able to address this process and any applicable audit parameters during the Participating Amendment phase with each individual state.

Any changes to the Model Participating Addendum must be approved by the Participating Entity.
13. As an entity, we are a wholly owned subsidiary of our parent company but offer WSCA Group C equipment which our parent does not. They will be looking to submit a bid for different equipment. Because our equipment offerings are different, our sales organizations do not sell each other’s products and our service departments are different we are looking to submit separate offers. Given the constraints of paragraph 3.2.4 is this acceptable to WSCA?

No. 
14. 3.2.3 - Can this requirement for cost per impression be take off for scanners?
If the specification does not apply, indicate as such. 
15. 3.5.7 - Will manufacture be required to train on sight for scanners or can it be done on line?

Contractors must offer one hour free onsite training; however, participating entities may negotiate training parameters for the order. 
16. In regards to Attachment D Section 31 and WSCA’s response to question 40, vendor asks that WSCA clarify this response to state that the Section 31 applies to the Purchasing Entity when the Purchasing Entity has purchased the product in contrast to leasing the product.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
17. In regards to Attachment D, Section 28, Standard of Performance and Acceptance, will WSCA allow billing to commence during the acceptance period.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
18. In regards to Attachment D, Standard of Performance and Acceptance, how will acceptance be communicated?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
19. Section 4.1.1 requires vendors to identify the “Location(s) of the office that will provide the services described in this RFP:” As the location(s) will depend on the agencies and states participating, which locations should we identify?

All fifty states and the District of Columbia.
20. Section 4.1.1 requires vendors to identify the “Location(s) from which employees will be assigned for this project:” As the location(s) will depend on the agencies and states participating, which locations should we identify?

See Question #19 above.

21. Section 4.1.1 requires vendors to identify the “Number of employees locally with the expertise to support the requirements identified in this RFP:” As the location(s) will depend on the agencies and states participating, which locations should we identify?

See Question #19 above.

22. Response to question #66 of the WSCA Amendment 2 states that remanufactured equipment may be proposed as additional offerings only. We respectfully express a concern with remanufactured equipment being included in any respect on this contract as this likely will risk the overall quality of this contract as well as the high standards set by WSCA/NASPO. This decision will open the door for a decline in customer satisfaction as, even though there is a definition of remanufacture stated in the RFP, the actual remanufacture process can vary greatly resulting in product inconsistency and reliability. We have encountered this enough to know it is very problematic.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
23. The Updated Group A Pricing Exhibits only go the Segment A5, yet the Configuration Cost exhibit is asking for Segment A6 and A9 which no longer exists. Please advise.

See Revisions to RFP above.
24. Both updated Groups A & B Configuration Cost Exhibits request Color/B&W for the requested segments. Does this imply we are to configure only combined B&W/Color machines? It seems that, at the very least there should be a mix allowing for B&W or Hybrid Color products or one of each. Please advise.

See Revisions to RFP above.

25. The clarification to 3.3.1 and Q&A response #49 Response #49 Attachment I, All Groups – If a vendor does not have a machine to bid in a segment at the time of the bid opening, but introduces a machine that meets the specifications and speed after award, will they be permitted to add that device to the contract? The response to this question states a product can be added in a segment not originally bid. As long as the vendor was awarded the Group; see Section 3.3.1 of the RFP 3.3.1 Additional Offered Devices and Software Awarded Vendors may offer additional devices and software within each awarded grouping so long as the device meets or exceeds the requirements of the RFP and subsequent contract; and meets or exceeds the discount of the bid device or software within the same grouping and segment. Any such additional device offering will be subject to review and approval by the Lead State Contract Administrator and Participating State Contract Administrator. It seems the answers above are contradictory. For example we are awarded Group A, but did not have a product that fit into Segment A5, but shortly after the award a new product was announced that is appropriate for Segment A5. Answer 49 above implies we may do so, but 3.3.1 also states it must meet or exceed the discount of the segment. May we bid a discount for a segment and include a product after the award? This is a quite important to clarify given a five (5) year contract and the rapidly changing technologies and subsequent pricing elements. It is important to ensure all products within a portfolio can be added throughout the five (5) years and at the same time ensure WSCA achieves a competitive price point.

If a contractor is awarded a group, they may add additional items to the various segments of that group as long as it meets the minimum specifications in the original RFP. 

26. Page 28, Section 3.4.7.2 Could Vendors provide a link to the manufacturer website for published specifications or would you like it from a 3rd party vendor (i.e. BLI) where there has to be a login to view specifications?

Third Party.
27. Previous WSCA Question #146 To further clarify, would spot reductions at the time of sale be considered a special price promotion?

Yes. 
28. Previous WSCA Question # 42 To further clarify, Could Vendors propose multiple makes and models in different segments at different discounts or the same discount when adding products at a later date?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
29. Page 50, Section 9.2.3.4 F Are Vendors required to provide all software license agreements in order to place software on the contract or can these agreements be provided after contract award?

See Revisions to RFP above.
30. In Section 2, Definitions, of the Master Terms and Conditions (Attachment D), and under Description on Page 12 of the RFP In Section 2, Definitions, of the Master Terms and Conditions (Attachment D), and under Description on Page 12 of the RFP, can the definition of "Intellectual Property” be limited to United States intellectual property rights, thus excluding foreign IP rights? Contract performance, including the sale of products and services to Purchasing Entities, will be provided within the United States only, and without this modification, the Contractor's infringement indemnification obligations become extremely broad. We would like to propose WSCA change the language to include: "Intellectual Property means any and all United States patents, copyrights, service marks, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, patentable inventions, or other similar proprietary rights, in tangible or intangible form, and all rights, title, and interest therein."

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
31. Section 14.a of the Master Terms and Conditions (Attachment D) Can the Contractor's indemnification obligations specified therein apply only to the extent of the fault of the Contractor or its agents, i.e., negligence or willful misconduct? Otherwise, such obligations on the part of the Contractor are extremely broad. We would like to propose WSCA change the language to include: "The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless WSCA-NASPO, the Lead State, Participating Entities, and Purchasing Entities, along with their officers, agents, and employees as well as any person or entity for which they may be liable, from and against third party claims, damages or causes of action (“Casualty Claim”) including reasonable attorneys’ fees and related costs for any death, injury, or damage to property to the extent arising from negligent act(s), error(s), or omission(s), or willful misconduct, of the Contractor, its employees or subcontractors or volunteers, at any tier, relating to the performance under the Master Agreement."
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
32. Section 10, Defaults and Remedies, of the Master Terms and Conditions (Attachment D) There are provisions for Lead State's recovery of liquidated damages in case of default by Contractor. As an example, Section 10.c. (3) states: "Impose liquidated damages as provided in this Master Agreement." As there are no other references to liquidated damages in the other Sections of the Master Agreement, can such reference to liquidated damages be removed?
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
33. Master Terms and Conditions (Attachment D) Can a provision consistent with industry standard be added to the Master Agreement which disclaims the recovery of consequential damages with respect to claims arising under the Agreement? We would like to propose the following language: "IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR INDIRECT DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH PARTY KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES."
No.
34. Page 28, Section 3.4.7.4 Would WSCA consider changing this requirement for speeds of over 160+ ppm as this is not an industry standard requirement for these devices?
No.
35. Page 63, Section 11.3.3 Will WSCA-NASPO users be allowed to submit orders for all procurement options (Lease, Purchase, etc.) via the eMarket Center?
All options are presumed available. 
36. Page 63, Section 11.3.3 Can the bidding vendors receive a sample of the preconfigured content management spreadsheet during the bidding process?
No.
37. Page 63, Section 11.3.3 Can any documents be provided during the bidding process regarding implementing a punchout solution?
No.

38. Page 63, Section 11.3.3 What system would vendors be pushing data to if a punch-out solution is utilized?
SciQuest is the company that currently hosts the eMarket Center platform. 
39. Page 63, Section 11.3.3 How will the Vendor receive the Purchase Orders that are submitted via the eMarket Center?
cXML or fax.
40. Page 42, Section 5.4.1 Would WSCA Consider updating this section to include the following updates: All lease factor quotes must be quoted as a decimal multiplying factor in such a manner that the purchase price may be multiplied by the lease factor to arrive at the resulting monthly payment including any taxes that are the responsibility of the Awarded Vendors. Awarded Vendors may update all lease rates on a quarterly basis for changes in the financial markets. The lease factors shall be adjusted (increased or decreased) by .00011 for every cumulative increase/decrease of 20 basis points in the like term US Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates since the previous change in the lease factor, or since the [Effective or Initial Date]. An Awarded Vendor shall update its dedicated contract website to reflect this change. Yield Curve Rates with a fixed margin as of the last publishing date of each Calendar Quarter (as published at http://www.ustreas.gov/offices/domestic-finance/debt-management/interest-rate/yield.shtml The Lead State Contract Administrator and the Participating State Contract Administrator must be notified of such changes 30 days prior to the inception of any rate changes. The Vendor must, within their RFP response, describe:

No.
41. All Price Attachments I (A-F) under the “Leasing Rates Tab” Please further clarify what is required under "Difference in rate for Fixed Rate"?
See Revisions to RFP above. 
42. All Price Attachments I (A-F) under the “Configuration Cost Tab” In the Configuration Cost Tab, the segment names/format does not match the segment names/format in the other tabs. Could WSCA revise the segment names/format to match the segment names/format that are outlined in the other Tabs to be accurate and consistent?
See Revisions to RFP above.
43. Page 45, 5.4.5 Software Could you please clarify what “Updates” would be inclusive?
All. 
44. Page 21, Section 3.2.3 and Page 44, Section 4.4.3.3 We would like the following language to be added to this section: “Consumables Inclusive service includes replenishment of consumables specified on the face page for exclusive use with the Equipment. Vendor may terminate this Agreement if you use the consumables in a different manner. In the event your toner usage exceeds by more than 10% the published manufacturer specifications for conventional office image coverage, as determined by Vendor, Vendor may invoice you for such excess usage. You may purchase additional toner from Vendor if required during the term. You shall bear all risk of loss, theft or damage to unused consumables, which shall remain Vendors property and shall be returned promptly upon termination of this Agreement.”
No. 
45. Previous WSCA Question 137 The previous WSCA question 137 refers back to an answer on 153, however, the answer on 153 does not answer 137. On the current WSCA contract you offer high speed devices that are printer centric and that do not include a RADF by definition. We respectfully request the RADF for Segment 9 be optional is it would not allow this product category of high speed production printing to continue to be offered on the new contract.
If the specification is not appropriate for your segment submission, mark “N/A”. 

46. Pricing Schedules A, B and C, List Pricing Tab, Software Options, Advance Scanning Software and Advance Scanning Interface Software Please clarify the requirements and capabilities for Advance Scanning software and Advance Scanning Interface software.
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
47. Pricing Schedules A, B and C, List Pricing Tab, Software Options Simple Account Software and Advance Accounting Software Please clarify the requirements and capabilities for Simple Account Software and Advance Accounting Software.
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
48. Pricing Schedules A, B and C, List Pricing Tab, Software Options Software can includes a very significant number of line items that could encompass multiple pages. Please confirm if for the software you want additional lines added or a separate worksheet.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
49. Section 3.4.3.6: In Amendment 1, the State adjusted 3.4.3.6 to have the paper capacity up to 11" x 17" in Printer Group D. Would the State revert to the original specification of "up to 8-1/2 x 14"'. According to International Data Corporation (IDC) research, only 2.35% of page volume is 11 x 17. Government users with printers primarily print letter and legal size documentation, and if there is a need for 11 x 17, they then send that job to the copier for the rare occasion. Print users, as opposed to copier users, normally have one tray with 8-1/2 x 11, and may use a secondary tray with 8-1/2 x 14. The specification of 11 x 17 could be added as an option.

No.  Specifications state “up to”. 
50. Group D Pricing Schedule: This RFP has included "purchase" as an option to acquire printers and copiers. Tab 2 of the Group D Pricing Schedule has Discount from MSRP. Is this calculation the purchase price? Would it be possible to add an extra column to the pricing file to avoid confusion?

Yes.
51. Group D Pricing Schedule: The WSCA/NASPO PC and Peripherals contract allowed supplies to be purchased as well. Would the State consider adding supplies/consumables for purchase to the contract? A discount for supplies could be added to the price sheet for Group D.

No.
52. Section 5.4.2.3 – Although in Q/A #84 it states that the termination cap applies only to “service & supply base” one could read it to mean the buyout amount is limited by the cap on the financed amount. Can this section can be written to read: ““All leases may be bought out to return to the Successful Vendors and devices returned to the owning lessor, although operational, fair market value, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge. With respect to leases, the termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments and with respect to service or maintenance agreements or obligations, the termination charge may not exceed more than four (4) months service and supply base charges or 25% of the remaining term whichever is less.”

No.
53. Q/A #6 – Subject to the requirements of the warranty, the lemon clause, or any cancellation terms allowed for in the Master Service agreement, can the equipment under lease can only be rejected prior to acceptance but once accepted and a delivery & acceptance certificate is signed, there can be no rejection of the equipment? Could this be incorporated into the PA’s?

Refer to amendment 1.

54. Q/A #67, re Page 14, what is the minimum term that may be offered under Operational Leases?

24 Months.
55. Q/A #93 – (see also Q/A #58 and #207); if the vendor/leasing company inserts leasing terms in the PA does this mean that the States can issue a PO off the PA which has lease terms within it? Does this mean that no lease forms will be signed but only lease terms and conditions built into the PA and then PO issued by end user?

No, unless determined by the Participating Entity.
56. Q/A #120 –Are we able to assign, solely for financing purposes, the rights, title and interest to the equipment, the right to collect payment and the right to receive payment, but keep and continue to perform the service obligations under your s/m agreement and the WSCA terms and conditions?

No.
57. Generic Question: Who is responsible for the payment of personal property taxes on leases?

It will vary by lease type. 
58. Page 46. Section 5.4.2.9 The Awarded Vendor may offer to Customers an upgrade/downgrade option for device placed. Such upgrade/downgrade options must afford a Customer the option of upgrading or downgrading a portion of device under a lease or rental without penalty. Question: is the intention to up/downgrade units that are over/under utilized? Also would the entity buy out the current unit and roll the payment onto the new unit?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
59. Question #93 asks: "Are vendors able to submit their own leasing forms, as part of the bid submission, and if approved by the participating state, use the approved form as ordering documentation." The response to that was "No". What is the intent of that "No" response? Was it to indicated that it's up to the Participating Entity to outline that in the PA and for the Participating Entity to decide if that's how it will work or was that response to mean that a lease document is not to be used and this would be like a PO submitted as the lease document type of set up?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
60. Section 3.4.3.8 states that multi-functional machines which copy, print, scan, and fax are acceptable submissions under the printer group D. However in the Questions and Answers, #133, states that A-4 devices cannot be submitted as printers. Could you please clarify?

See Revisions to RFP above. 
61. Section 3.3.6, Device Inspection/Testing/Acceptance: If a procuring entity simply purchases Product can the Vendor propose language to cover acceptance for purchases since procuring entities typically do not provide acceptance. Also, if a procuring entity selects the leasing option, leases have an acceptance document that is required in order to start the lease. Can that be considered the acceptance for leasing?
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
62. Given that the new contract will be the primary vehicle for transactional copier, printer, and multifunction devices would there be consideration to amend the 11x17 paper size requirement? Category A & B if amended to include devices that do not support this paper size but include multifunction capabilities would provide an opportunity for entities to procure products that offer platforms superior in performance, workflow solutions and significantly lower consumable costs. Supportive benefits also would include device manageability, reduced footprint, and environmental benefits. As a suggestion Group “A” could include B/W, Color/B&W and Color/B&W MFP.
No. 
63. Section 3.4.1.2 – For walk-up or convenience copy jobs: finishing options are not generally required, making Margin Shift a less important feature. Can the Margin Shift requirement be removed from Convenience Copiers (Group A)?
No. 
64. Sections 3.4.2.4 & 3.4.2.5 - Many customers do not require two media sources, and many GIS customers require larger prints that cannot be achieved in products with two media sources (i.e. 60”). Would it be possible to have this requirement removed and included as an option instead?
No.
65. Section 3.4.1.8 - Given that the new contract will be the primary vehicle for transactional copier, printer, and multifunction devices would there be consideration to amend the 11x17 paper size requirement? Category A & B if amended to include devices that do not support this paper size but include multifunction capabilities would provide an opportunity for entities to procure products that offer platforms superior in performance, workflow solutions and significantly lower consumable costs. Supportive benefits also would include device manageability, reduced footprint, and environmental benefits. As a suggestion Group “A” could include B/W, Color/B&W and Color/B&W MFP.
No. See Question #62 above. 
66. Section 5.4.2, Leasing, Rentals and Short Term Rentals (original RFP): This section states that at a minimum the following financial vehicles shall be offered. [Emphasis added]. Does this means that rental offerings are required for a compliant RFP response? Vendors were notified at the NASPO Marketing event that this RFP would replace the Printer/MFD band for the WSCA-NASPO Computer contract; a rental requirement would eliminate the competition currently available on the 2009-2014 WSCA-NASPO Computer for vendors that do not have a rental option.
See Revisions to RFP above.
67. Section 5.4.2, Leasing, Rentals and Short Term Rentals (original RFP): This section notes a minimum requirement to include rentals. Would the State consider a response compliant if leasing is proposed without rental offerings?
See Revisions to RFP above.
68. In Section 5.4.2.8: Is it the intent of WSCA NASPO that the OEM vendor/manufacturer bidding must also be the financial Lessor for all financial lease transactions? Can an OEM propose, without risk of the bid being deemed non-responsive, for participating end user(s) to establish a separate financial lease contract directly with a 3rd party financial institution instead of with the OEM awarded the Master Agreement? In Section 5.4.2.8, is it the intent of WSCA NASPO to have the vendor/manufacturer be the Lessor for all transactions or would it be possible for a participating end user to sign a lease contract directly with a Lessor and not the manufacturer?
No. 
69. Section 5.4.2.8 - If an Awarded Vendor has a separate Financial Subsidiary or Company that handles leasing transactions, can that Vendor propose that option for the purposes of this RFP and subsequent Master as approved by each Participating State?
Yes. 
70. The Scope of the RFP indicates that MPS is excluded, interpreted to mean Managed Print Services. Will WSCA-NASPO continue the separate, State of New Mexico led WSCA-NASPO Managed Print Services Master Agreement (reference: 20-000-00-00040A-F) beyond the initial contract term expiration of August 31, 2015? Can a bidding OEM for RFP 3091 include an option for Managed Print Services, without risk of being deemed non-responsive?

No. 
71. Generic Question: Can we negotiate / provide alternate pricing based on direct cost differences/adjustments required for Hawaiian installations?

No. 
72. Generic Question: Will the State / user entity provide casualty insurance (risk of all or partial loss) while the equipment is in its possession?

No. 
73. RFP Document Page 23, 3.3.6 Will the State / using Agency (Lessee) sign an acceptance certificate on receipt of the equipment to complete our transaction documentation?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
74. Re question 31: Because 11x17 documents are to be treated as a single click, and 11 x 17 can use significantly more toner than normal, in order to keep regular pricing competitive, can the vendor reserve the option to bill for toner usage that far exceeds industry norms?
No.
75. Attachment D, 19, License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property - This is highly unusual when it comes to software.  Software licenses are not royalty free and there will be a big pushback anytime we present IP rights and usage to a 3rd party vendor. Please delete the words "royalty-free".  Software license agreements with third party vendors are not 'royalty-free".  In addition, please remove the words "Intellectual Property" and change to read to "software".

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond. 
76. RFP Document, Page 41, Section 5.3.3 - Can vendors charge for installation of co-term accessories?  Adding an additional accessory after the initial installation would require an additional trip and technician time to install.  Most accessories are at a low cost and may result in a loss for the vendor.  

To be negotiated with the Purchasing Entity. 
77. Group C - Typically on Wide Format equipment paper is available as an option. Per the RFP paper is not to be included. Does this mean we cannot bid paper at all, even as an option? If not, what do we advise the customers to do when they need paper, go open market?

No, paper is not included in this RFP.  The Customer determines their own process for purchasing paper. 
78. RFP Document Page 20, 3.1 Segments - Are the “Speed in Pages Per Minute” for Group A&B Color/B&W the minimum ppm for black and white or the color ppm?  Some color models have different black and white vs color speeds.  

Color.
79. RFP Document Page 26, 3.4.1.7 (c) – Please clarify if this needs to be 4 drawers OR 2,000-sheets or 4 drawers AND 2,000-sheets. And/or does not make sense. We recommend you make it just based on the 2,000-sheet paper capacity.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
80. Amendment 1 - Section 3.1 Segments - We appreciate WSCA recognizing the need to separate Convenience Copiers vs Production Copiers. However, throughout the industry Print Production machines start at 60ppm for Color. In fact, most manufacturers do not have color machines, or many at all, above 90ppm. It is important for WSCA to add additional speed segments to Group B so that there are as many products available on this contract as possible.

Recommendation: Group B

Segment B3 - 60-69

Segment B4 - 70-79

Segment B5 - 80-90

No. 

81. Amendment 1 Question 29 - As stated in the bid under Section 5.4.2.5 this is not evaluated or required. There is just enough time to complete all the WSCA price sheets, but this is a whole other pricing program, as if we are doing 2 completely different bid pricing structures in 1 RFP.

Per 5.4.2.5, D - This program should be specifically addressed with the State in their PA. There are very few States that use this program, but if more than 1 does want this program, their volumes, models, structure would more than likely not be the same from state to state.  Also, under A it states we are to disclose the pricing methodology to the Customer.

Why would WSCA require us to complete these additional pricing sheets in our original bid in order to be considered for it later, especially since it’s not evaluated?   There is just enough time to complete all the WSCA price sheets, but this is a whole other pricing program, as if we are doing 2 completely different bid pricing structures in 1 RFP.  We strongly suggest having the vendor submit in their proposal their willingness to offer an all-inclusive cpc program upon request via PA be acceptable, then we would provide the pricing for that specific State at that time. It does not appear as if the all-inclusive cpc price sheets were prepared with the intent of having the vendors complete them for the August 20th deadline. Please confirm this will be handled at the time of PA.

If the requirement to bid this upfront remains, then we will need to know the following information asap and will need additional time to complete the proposal, therefore an extension will need to be granted: 

a) What are the target volumes we should bid, as in the past the State’s that use this program have set the volumes for all the vendors?

b) We will need the terms and conditions surrounding the all-inclusive cpc, as this is necessary to determine pricing.

c) What are the monthly volume ranges? Vendors would not determine what the States monthly volume ranges are? Even if the vendor chooses their own Target Volume, in no case would they ever determine the states monthly volume ranges for each segment.

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
82. Amendment 1, Page 2, Section 3.1 Segments - There is no longer an A6 & A9, however the price sheets still have these segments under the Configuration Cost. This needs to be revised. 

See Revisions to RFP above. 
83. Amendment 1, Page 13, Question 39 - As it was written originally, the survivability clause (3.3.10) seemed to apply to in place leases (i.e. “placements”) that had not reached their initial term when the Master contract expires.  Which made sense. This clarification that has been provided is confusing. Are you saying now that if the Master Contract expires, for example, on 11/30/2019 that a State PA can survive beyond that date? How is that possible? This clause should only relate to in place leases continuing until they reach term, even if the contract expires.
The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
84. Amendment  1 – Now that there is a new segment (A2), will you be updating the Device Configurations 3.4.1.7 to include Segment 2 specifications (should be the same as segment 3).

See Revisions to RFP above.
85. Amendment 1, Page 13, Question 42 - Since we may offer different discounts and add columns in each segment, can we also offer different maintenance pricing in the same segment and add columns to correspond with those same machines (i.e. 45, 55, 65 ppm hardware and maintenance can be different discounts and maintenance rates in the same segment)?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.

86. Amendment 1, Page 15, Question 57 - We understand that we must meet the requirements of 3.7.4.3, but this did not address our question. Can we charge for this service, and where do we include this pricing in our proposal?

No. 
87. Amendment 1, Page 21, Question 93 - Answer states we are not to include our lease forms. However, page 59, 11.1.6 states that we must include our proposed lease purchase agreements and that the omission of these documents renders a proposal non-responsive. Since this has serious ramifications, it’s important that you are clear on this. Do we include our lease purchase (i.e. lease forms) with our bid submission or not?

Amendment 1 answer to Question #93 changes this requirement. 
88. Amendment 1, Page 24, Question 112 - Did not address question. It states we must propose pricing. Where do we propose pricing for this service? 

Contractor may put proposed pricing in price sheets under additional options and identify as such. 
89. RFP Document, Section 5.4.2.3 – Although in Q/A #84 it states that the termination cap applies only to “service & supply base” one could read it to mean the buyout amount is limited by the cap on the financed amount.  Can you please revise this section can be written to read: ““All leases may be bought out to return to the Successful Vendors and devices returned to the owning lessor, although operational, fair market value, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge. With respect to leases, the termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments and with respect to service or maintenance agreements or obligations, the termination charge may not exceed more than four (4) months service and supply base charges or 25% of the remaining term whichever is less.”

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
90. Amendment 1, Question 6 - Can equipment under lease only be rejected prior to acceptance but once accepted and a delivery & acceptance certificate is signed, there can be no rejection of the equipment?  And incorporate this into the PA?

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
91. Amendment 1, Question 93 - "Are vendors able to submit their own leasing forms, as part of the bid submission, and if approved by the participating state, use the approved form as ordering documentation."  The response to that was "No".  What is the intent of that "No" response?  Was it to indicated that it's up to the Participating Entity to outline that in the PA and for the Participating Entity to decide if that's how it will work or was that response to mean that a lease document is not to be used and this would be like a PO submitted as the lease document type of set up? 

The State and WSCA-NASPO choose not to respond.
92. Amendment 1, Question 120 - Can the vendor assign, solely for financing purposes, our rights, title and interest to the equipment, the right to collect payment and the right to receive payment, but keep and continue to perform the service obligations under your s/m agreement and the WSCA terms and conditions.
No.  See Question #56 above. 
93. Amendment 1, Question 207 - What is the intent of that response regarding the question whether WSCA will accept under financing terms the lease documents taking precedence? What if a PA states that an entity can enter into a separate stand-alone lease agreement or that the lease takes precedence, would that not be acceptable? 

No, it is not acceptable. 
94. RFP 3091-11.4.2.8-Delivery, Inspection: Acceptance, Risk of Loss-Page 70 - Paragraph states-Contractor agrees to deliver the goods as indicated in the Contract, and upon acceptance by the State, title to the goods shall pass to the State unless otherwise states in the Contract.
Please change to read- Contractor agrees to deliver the goods as indicated in the contract, and upon successful delivery and installation, the State shall accept the goods and title shall pass to the state.  The customer may not unreasonably withhold acceptance once the machine has been installed and invoicing can begin upon installation.
The way this is written is rather open ended and we would like it to be better defined
No.
95. RFP Document, Acronyms Definitions 2.1-Service Zones; Page 17 - Please allow the following changes to the Service Zones- We need to better define rural and remote. “Outside” of 60 miles needs to have a define maximum. A remote area may have roads but may be too far for a vendor to reach within 4 hours or even 1 day.
Urban- Within a 60 mile radius of closest Service

Base Location, within 60 miles of the State

Capital or within 60 mile radius of a Metropolitan Statistical Area.-No change requested

Rural- OutsideWithin  a 60-120 mile radius from 

closest Service

Base Location, the State Capital or a Metropolitan Statistical Areas.

Remote- Areas inaccessible via road from any Urban

or Rural Service Zone regardless of distance

or 120 miles from nearest servicing location.

We cannot guarantee service, service response times or uptime for remote areas as described above.

a. 3.  3.5.12.3 Timeliness of Service RFP 3091 Page 33 of 99   Please Allow Language in Blue as this is standard industry practice-
b. Urban Response Time-“Average” of 4 hours

c. Rural Response Time-“Average” of 1 working day
d. Remote Response Time-“Average” of 4 working days.
No, to all of the above.
96. RFP Document, 3.3.4-End of Term Notification, Page 22 - Please allow the following changes-Successful Vendors must notify a Customer in writing in 60-90 90 days prior to the end of any financing term or Service and Supplies term. Please note that this is a manual process for most vendors.

No. 
97. RFP Document, 3.5.12.2 Service and Timeliness of service, Page 33 - Add language in blue 3.5.12.2 New orders for devices must be installed by the Awarded Vendor within 30 calendar days of order placement.  Software related to the device must be installed within five (5) working days of the device installation.  Excess installation time may be afforded by the Customer. Orders for equipment will be installed within 30 days of vendor’s receipt of the purchase order.  Installation times may be slightly longer for Hawaii and Alaska or very remote locations
No. 
98. RFP Document, 3.5.12.3, Page 33 - Please add language in blue- Moves, equipment pickups and equipment trade-ins must be accomplished in 30 days of receipt of request. Times may be longer in Alaska, Hawaii or very remote locations
No. 

99. RFP Document, 3.3.7.2 Order of Precedence, Page 23 - 
Please allow the following revision to the Order of Precedence

i. (Was F in RFP) Contractor’s response to the Solicitation RFP #3091, as revised (if permitted) and accepted by the Lead State

ii. (Was A in RFP) A Participating State or Entity’s unique terms and conditions as presented in 
the Participating Addendum;

iii. (Was B in RFP) The Executed WSCA-NASPO Master Agreement;

iv. (Was C In RFP) A Purchase Order issued against the Master Agreement;

v. (Was D in RFP) The State of Work;

iv. (Was E in RFP) The Solicitation RFP #3091, including all attachments and amendments and any Participating Entity terms and conditions attached as exhibits or attachments; and
No. 
100. If the state has accepted the vendor’s exceptions and qualifications, then this should take precedent over other documents and exhibits as this is the final contract as negotiated and agreed to between vendor and WSCA Master Contract. Please revise order of precedence. 

No.
101. RFP Document, 3.5.5.2 Billing and Invoicing, Page 31 - Please allow deletion of language in red--3.5.5.2. The Participating State or Entity and WSCA-NASPO may request at any point proof of the billing accuracy through the data set supporting the billing.  If the Customer or WSCA-NASPO has reason to believe that multiple and systemic billing errors exist, that cannot be corrected to the Customer’s or WSCA-NASPO’s satisfaction; the Customer or WSCA-NASPO may require an audit by a third party approved in advance by Awarded Vendor.  If errors are found, the Awarded Vendor must reimburse the Customer or WSCA-NASPO for the cost of the auditor as well as correcting any billing errors.  

At a very minimum please allow: Awarded Vendor must reimburse the Customer or WSCA-NASPO for the reasonable cost of the auditor as well as correcting any billing errors.  

No.
102. RFP Document, 3.5.6.3 Reporting, Page 32 - Please delete language in red, add in blue.  3.5.6.3 The Customer and WSCA-NASPO may request at any point proof of the reporting accuracy through the data set supporting the reporting, as defined above.  If the Customer or WSCA-NASPO has reason to believe that multiple and systemic reporting errors exist, that cannot be corrected per the terms of the awarded contract, to the Customer’s or WSCA-NASPO’s or satisfaction upon giving the vendor a 30 day notice to cure ; the Customer or WSCA-NASPO may require an audit by a third party approved in advance by Awarded Vendor.  If errors are found, the Awarded Vendor must reimburse the Customer or WSCA-NASPO for the cost of the auditor as well as correcting any administrative fee errors

At the very minimum please allow:  If errors are found, the Awarded Vendor must reimburse the Customer or WSCA-NASPO for the reasonable cost of the auditor as well as correcting any administrative fee errors.  In addition, “satisfaction” is arbitrary and subject to interpretation and should be deleted.
No.
103. RFP Document, 11.4.2.3  Infringement Indemnity through Section  11.4.2.8 Delivery; Inspection; Acceptance; Risk of Loss RFP 3091 Pages 68 and 69 - Add language in Blue/delete in red.  This language is standard commercial industry practice-

11.4.2.3 Infringement Indemnity - CONTRACTOR WARRANTS THAT THE SERVICES SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE EQUIPMENT.  CONTRACTOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WITH REGARD TO THE EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, SERVICE, THE SOFTWARE INCLUDED WITH THE EQUIPMENT OR ITS INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE, AND EXPRESSLY EXCLUDES ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE
11.4.2.4 Usage of Trade; Course of Dealings; Implied Warranties-Please add language in blue and  delete in red as this is standard industry practice- CONTRACTOR WARRANTS THAT THE SERVICES SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER’S RECOMMENDATIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE EQUIPMENT.  CONTRACTOR MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WITH REGARD TO THE EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, SERVICE, THE SOFTWARE INCLUDED WITH THE EQUIPMENT OR ITS INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE, AND EXPRESSLY EXCLUDES ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THOSE OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.


Contractor shall also be bound by any other implied warranty that, at the time of execution of the Contract, prevails in the trade of government in the marketing area in and about the State of Nevada.  Contractor shall also be bound by any other implied warranty arising through course of dealings between Contractor and the State from and after the execution of the Contract.  

Contractor shall also be bound by all warranties set forth in Nevada's Uniform Commercial Code (NRS Title 8) in effect on the date of execution of the Contract.
11.4.2.5 Warranties Cumulative-Please delete language in red

It is understood that warranties created by the Contract, whether express or implied, as well as all warranties arising by operation of law that affect the rights of the parties under the Contract, are cumulative and should be construed in a manner consistent with one another 
11.4.2.6 Priority of Warranties

If it is held by a court of competent jurisdiction that there is an irreconcilable conflict between or among any of the warranties set forth in the Contract and any warranties implied by law, the parties agree that the specifications contained in the Contract shall be deemed technical and mere language of description control. 
11.4.2.7 Beneficiaries of Warranties

Benefit of any warranty made in the Contract shall be in favor of the State, any of its political subdivisions or agencies, and any employee or licensee thereof who uses the goods, and the benefit of any warranty shall apply to both personal injury and property damage.
11.4.2.8 Delivery; Inspection; Acceptance; Risk of Loss

No, to all of the above.
104. Contractor agrees to deliver the goods as indicated in the Contract, and upon acceptance by   the State, title to the goods shall pass to the State unless otherwise stated in the Contract. The State shall have the right to inspect the goods on arrival and, within a commercially reasonable time, the State must give notice to Contractor of any claim or damages on account of condition, quality, or grade of the goods, and the State must specify the basis of the claim in detail. Vendor will provide an acceptance period of three (3) days for customer to review equipment for specifications and conditions.  After a unit has been installed for three (3) days, it will be deemed accepted by customer. Acceptance of the goods is not a waiver of UCC revocation of acceptance rights or of any right of action that the State may have for breach of warranty or any other cause.   Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, risk of loss from any casualty, regardless of the cause, shall be on Contractor until the goods have been delivered. accepted and title has passed to the State.   If given any, the State agrees to follow reasonable instructions regarding return of the goods
No.
105. Attachment D, Master Terms, Item 2-Definitions Page 1 - Please add language in blue, as this is standard commercial industry practice:

Definitions:

Acceptance means a written notice from a Purchasing Entity to Contractor advising Contractor that the Product has passed its Acceptance Testing. Acceptance of a Product for which acceptance testing is not required shall occur following the completion of delivery, installation, if required, and a reasonable time for inspection of the Product, unless the Purchasing Entity provides a written notice of rejection to Contractor.  Acceptance notification time shall not exceed 3 days from date of installation.
No. 
106. Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions-13-Force Majeure Page 7 - Please add languages in Blue-monies have still been appropriated and payment of equipment should continue.

a) 13.  Force Majeure 

Neither party to this Master Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or 
default caused by fire, riot, acts of God and/or war which is beyond that party’s reasonable control.  The Lead State may terminate this Master Agreement after determining such delay or default will reasonably prevent successful performance of the Master Agreement.  Equipment payment obligations to the Vendor shall continue during Force Majeure. Service or maintenance obligations may be suspended during force majeure if equipment cannot be utilized.
No. 

107. Attachment D, Master Terms and Conditions-14 b-Indemnification, Page 7 - Please add language in blue, delete in red-14 b. 


14-b. Indemnification – Intellectual Property. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless WSCA-NASPO, the Lead State, Participating Entities, Purchasing Entities, along with their officers, agents, and employees as well as any person or entity for which they may be liable ("Indemnified Party"), from and against claims, damages or causes of action including reasonable attorneys’ fees and related costs arising out of the claim that the Product equipment leased or purchased under the final, mutually agreed upon agreement or its use, infringes Intellectual Property rights ("Intellectual Property Claim").


Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions-14 b-Indemnification- Add a number (2), Page 8 of 20. Please add the following paragraph-

2) This indemnity provision will not apply if such third party claims of intellectual property rights violations are caused by the Indemnified Party, its officers, directors, employees or agents using the equipment in such a way as to cause such infringement, including, but not limited to, using equipment or products other than Contractor products or using Contractor’s equipment or products in an unauthorized manner
No. 

108. Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions-14 b-Indemnification, Page 8 of 20-( Was Item 2) in RFP - Please add language in blue, delete in red –

(2) (3) The Indemnified Party shall notify the Contractor within a reasonable 
time after receiving notice of an Intellectual Property Claim.  Even if the Indemnified Party fails to provide reasonable notice, the Contractor shall not be relieved from its obligations unless the Contractor can demonstrate that it was prejudiced in defending the Intellectual Property Claim resulting in increased expenses or loss to the Contractor.  If tThe Contractor promptly and reasonably investigates and defends any Intellectual Property Claim, it shall have control over the defense and settlement of it.  However, the Indemnified Party must consent in writing for any money damages or obligations for which it may be responsible. The Indemnified Party shall furnish, at the Contractor’s reasonable request and the Indemnified Party’s expense, information and assistance necessary for such defense. If the Contractor fails to vigorously pursue the defense or settlement of the Intellectual Property Claim, the Indemnified Party may assume the defense or settlement of it and the Contractor shall be liable for all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and related costs, Incurred by the Indemnified Party in the pursuit of the Intellectual Property Claim.  In the event the Indemnified Party does not provide Contractor with timely notice and the right to defend such claims, this indemnity provision shall not apply.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, this section is not subject to any limitations of liability in this Master Agreement or in any other document executed in conjunction with this Master Agreement.
No. 

109. Attachment D, Master Terms and Conditions, 19. License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property, Page 10 of 20 - Please delete language in red, add in blue as this is standard commercial industry language-


Contractor grants to the Purchasing Entity a nonexclusive, perpetual, royalty-free, irrevocable, unlimited license to publish, translate, reproduce, 
modify, deliver, perform, display, and dispose of use the Intellectual Property, and its derivatives, used or delivered under this Master Agreement, but not created under it (“Pre-existing Intellectual Property”). The license shall be subject to any third party rights in the Pre-existing Intellectual Property. Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, on behalf of the Purchasing Entity, written consent of the owner for the licensed Pre-existing Intellectual Property.

No. 
110. Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions -25. Records and Audit a.  Page 13 - Please Delete language in red, add in blue as Vendors could not provide their actual books, but could provide copies of their books and documents-

25.  Records Administration and Audit. 

a) The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to this Master Agreement and orders placed by Purchasing Entities under it to the extent and in such detail as shall 
adequately reflect performance and administration of payments and fees.  Contractor shall permit the Lead State, a Participating Entity, a Purchasing Entity, the federal government (including its grant awarding entities and the U.S. Comptroller General), and any other duly authorized agent of a governmental agency, to audit, inspect, examine, copy and/or transcribe photocopies of Contractor's books, documents, papers and records directly pertinent to this Master Agreement or orders placed by a Purchasing Entity 
under it for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and 
transcriptions.  This right shall survive for a period of five (5) years  following termination of this Agreement or final payment for any order placed by a Purchasing Entity against this Agreement, whichever is later, to assure compliance with the terms hereof or to evaluate performance hereunder

No. 

111. Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions 28-Standard of Performance and Acceptance Page 15 of 20 - Please delete language in red, add in blue as this is standard commercial industry practice Current Language as a thirty day acceptance period is too long, and greatly exceeds commercial practice acceptance periods for goods:  

Finding contractor in breach for one order is an excessive and unreasonable penalty

Allowing purchasing to have sole determination that product does not meet performance specifications is similar to allowing an entity to cancel for convenience

1. 28. Any standard of performance under this Master Agreement applies to all Products purchased under this Master Agreement, including any additional, replacement, or substitute Product(s) and any Product(s) which are modified by or with the written approval of Contractor after Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity.  The Acceptance Testing period shall be thirty (30) three (3) calendar days or other time period identified in the solicitation or the Participating Addendum, starting from the day after the Product is delivered or, if installed, the day after the Product is installed and Contractor certifies that the Product is ready for Acceptance Testing.  If the Product does not meet the standard of performance the manufacturer’s performance 
specifications as awarded under the RFP, during the initial period of Acceptance Testing, Purchasing Entity may, at its discretion,  continue Acceptance Testing on a day-to-day basis until the standard of performance manufacturer’s performance specifications as awarded under the RFP is are met. Upon rejection, the Contractor will have fifteen (15) calendar days to cure the standard of performance manufacturer’s performance specification issue as awarded per the RFP issue(s). If after the cure period, the Product still has not met the standard of performance, manufacturer’s performance specification as awarded per the RFP the Purchasing Entity may, at its option: (a) declare Contractor to be in breach and terminate the Order; (b) demand replacement Product from Contractor at no additional cost to Purchasing Entity; or, (c) continue the cure period for an additional time period agreed 
upon by the Purchasing Entity and the Contractor. Contractor shall pay all costs related to the preparation and shipping of Product returned pursuant to the section. No Product shall be accepted and no charges shall be paid until the manufacturer’s performance specification as awarded per the RFP standard of performance is met.  The warranty period will begin upon Acceptance

No.
112. Attachment D-Master Terms and Conditions -29 Warranty, Page 16 of 20 - Please delete language in red, add in blue:

29. 
Warranty  - The Contractor warrants for a minimum of 90  days from the date of Acceptance that: (a) the Product performs according to all specific claims that the Contractor made in its response to the solicitation, (b) the Product is suitable for the ordinary purposes for which such Product is used, (c) the Product is suitable for any special purposes identified in the solicitation or for which the Purchasing Entity has relied on the Contractor’s skill or judgment, (d) the Product is designed and manufactured in a commercially reasonable manner, and (e) the Product is free of defects. Upon breach of the warranty  with 15 days’ notice to cure to Contractor, and failure of Contractor to bring product to factory and RFP specifications, the Contractor will repair or replace (at no charge to the Purchasing Entity) the Product whose nonconformance is discovered and made known to the Contractor.  If the repaired and/or replaced Product proves to be inadequate, or fails to perform of its essential purpose per the factory and RFP specifications during the remainder of the warranty period, the Contractor will refund the full amount of any equipment payments that have been made for the time period that the replacement machine did not meet the warranty requirements. The rights and remedies of the parties under this warranty are in addition to any other rights and remedies of the parties provided by law or equity, including, without limitation, actual damages, and, as applicable and awarded under the law, to a prevailing party, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

No.

113. RFP 3091, Page 30 of 99, Section 3.4.11.2-Lemon Clause Please remove this section-

If 25% or less of the device’s useful life has been used up, the device must be replaced with a “new device”.  A “like for like” device may be used if 25% or more of the useful life of the device has been used up and the Customer agrees to the “like for like” exchange.  Note:  Prior to the lease or purchase of a device, Contractor must provide Customer with the device’s “Useful Life”.
This clause would not apply to MFD’s or printers.  The useful life of these devices is not based on time alone, but rather the number of copies, usage and continual maintenance of the machine. It would be impossible for a vendor to predict this prior to the lease or purchase of a device.  In addition, this is not standard commercial practice.


No.

114. Attachment E-Insurance Schedule Item b. (2) AND Attachment D-Master Terms Item b.(2) Please add language in blue:  Contractor must comply with any applicable State workers Compensation or Employers Liability Insurance requirements.  Please allow vendors to add the following clarification: Vendor agrees that it shall be solely responsible for any deductibles carried on its workers’ compensation policy.
We ask this because the deductibles may vary by state, and we would like to be clear that regardless of the deductible amount, we will be responsible for it, as we cannot change our insurance policy to accommodate each state.

No.
115. Attachment E-Insurance Schedule Item d. AND Attachment D Master Terms Item d. Please add Clarification language in blue:  

Prior to commencement of performance, Contractor shall provide to the Lead State a written endorsement to the Contractor’s general liability insurance policy or other documentary evidence acceptable to the Lead State that (1) names the Participating States identified in the Request for Proposal as additional insured’s, (2) provides that no material alteration, cancellation, non-renewal, or expiration of the coverage contained in such policy shall have effect unless the named Participating State has been given at least thirty (30) days prior written notice, and (3) provides that the Contractor’s liability insurance policy shall be primary, with any liability insurance of any Participating State as secondary and noncontributory.  Unless otherwise agreed in any Participating Addendum, the Participating Entity’s rights and Contractor’s obligations are the same as those specified in the first sentence of this subsection.  Before performance of any Purchase Order issued after execution of a Participating Addendum authorizing it, the Contractor shall provide to a Purchasing Entity or Participating Entity who requests it the same information described in this subsection. Please allow vendors to add the following clarification- Vendor agrees that its insurance policies and insurance certificates shall contain standard cancelation language.  Vendor’s insurance broker shall provide the Lead State with thirty (30) days written notice with regards to any material change, cancellation, non-renewal or expiration of coverage.  

The reason for this request is that we cannot modify our insurance policy standard cancellation language, but we can notify that lead state within 30 days if we have any change/expiration etc.


No.

ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3091.

Vendor must sign and return this amendment with proposal submitted.

	Vendor Name:
	

	Authorized Signature:
	

	Title:
	
	Date:
	


	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.


	State of Nevada
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	Brian Sandoval

	Department of Administration
	
	Governor

	Purchasing Division
	
	

	515 E. Musser Street, Suite 300
	
	Greg Smith

	Carson City, NV  89701
	
	Administrator


	SUBJECT:
	Amendment 1 to Request for Proposal 3091

	RFP TITLE:
	Copiers, Printers and Related Devices

	DATE OF AMENDMENT:
	July 16, 2014

	DATE OF RFP RELEASE:
	June 10, 2014

	OPENING DATE:
	August 20, 2014

	OPENING TIME:
	2:00 PM

	CONTACT:
	Shannon Berry, Assistant Chief  Procurement Officer


The following shall be a part of RFP 3091.  If a vendor has already returned a proposal and any of the information provided below changes that proposal, please submit the changes along with this amendment.  You need not re-submit an entire proposal prior to the opening date and time.

Resulting contracts will cover all WSCA-NASPO states and eligible entities Nationwide; therefore, it is limited to qualified manufacturers and pursuant to Section 3.2.1 of the RFP, awards will be made to Manufacturers only.  As stated in Section 7.1.4 resellers/dealers were to work with manufacturers for any questions; therefore, any questions submitted by resellers/dealers were not included in this amendment.  

Revisions to RFP:

Section 1.5 Device Groupings:

	Group
	Devices

	A
	Convenience Copiers (B&W and Color/B&W) 

	B
	Production Copiers (B&W and Color/B&W) 

	C
	Wide Format Devices (B&W and Color/B&W)

	D
	Printers (B&W and Color/B&W)

	E
	Digital Duplicators

	F
	Scanners


Section 2.1 Capital Lease:
	Capital Lease
	A capital lease is classified by the Customer as a purchase and must meet one or more of the following criteria:

· The lease term is greater than 75% of the property’s estimated economic life.

· The lease contains an option to purchase the property for less than fair market value.

· Ownership of the property is transferred to the Customer at the end of the lease term.

· The present value of the lease payment exceeds 90% of the fair market value of the property.

· Such leases shall be subject to monthly payment reduction by the Awarded Vendor upon renewal, based upon the depreciated value.  The depreciated value must be disclosed to the Customer at the time of the renewal; and the renewal rate is subject to the same terms and conditions under the contract with the Awarded Vendor.




	Manufacturer Suggested Retail Price (MSRP)


	List price or recommended retail price of a product is the price which the manufacturer recommends that the retailer sell the product.  MSRP is pricing provided on a single manufacturer’s published price list. to Buyers Laboratory Inc. (BLI) by manufactures.


Section 3.1 Segments:

	Group A –  Convenience Copiers 

Includes B&W and Color/B&W

	Segment
	Speed in Pages Per Minute (PPM)

	A2
	20 - 30

	A3
	31 – 40

	A4
	41 – 69

	A5
	70 – 90


	Group B – Production Copiers 

Includes B&W and Color/B&W

	Segment
	Speed in Pages Per Minute (PPM)

	B6
	91 – 119

	B7
	120 – 139

	B8
	140 – 159

	B9
	160+


	Group C – Wide Format Devices 

Includes B&W and Color/B&W

	Segment
	Speed in Square Feet Monthly (SFM)*
	D Size a Minute

	Low
	500 – 10,000
	4+ 

	Medium
	10,001 – 50,000 
	9+

	High
	50,001+
	20+ 


	Group D – Printers 

Includes B&W and Color/B&W

	Segment
	Speed in Pages Per Minute (PPM)

	D1
	Up – 20

	D2
	21 – 40

	D3
	41 – 60


	Group F – Scanners

	Segment
	Speed in Images Pages Per Minute (PIPM)

	F0
	30 – 49

	F1
	50 – 59

	F2
	60 – 69

	F3
	70 – 79

	F4
	80 – 89 

	F5
	90+


Section 3.2.8:

Pricing for this RFP and any subsequent contract must be expressed as a discount from Manufacturer Suggested Retail Price (MSRP).  The MSRP must be available on a single manufacturer’s published price list and be publicly available throughout the contract period. The manufacturer must identify in their proposal where the price list is published.  MSRP must be a published figure with the Buyers Laboratory Inc. (BLI).  Discounts from list may be increased during the term of the contract by an Awarded Vendor.  The WSCA-NASPO Contract Manager and the Participating State Contract Administrator must be notified of any such increase in discount.   At no time during the contract period may the discount be reduced.
Section 3.4.3.1:

Device does not copy as the primary function and does not allow 11” x 17” paper; 

Section 3.4.3.6:

Paper size capacity up to 8-1/2” x 14” 11” x 17” and envelope adjustment capability; 

Section 3.4.3.2

Shall include an LED, inkjet or laser print engine

Section 3.4.10

Equipment, including all accessories and software, supplied through this contract shall be capable of continuous operation.  Therefore, Awarded Vendor shall guarantee that all contract equipment will be operational at least 9896% of normal business hours.  Equipment that develops a trend of requiring an excessive number of service calls shall be reported by the Customer to the Awarded Vendor or by the Awarded Vendor to the Customer as the situation warrants.  Should the equipment, any accessories, or software become inoperable for a period of twenty-four (24) consecutive working hours, the Awarded Vendor shall, at the Customer’s option, provide, at no charge, a loaner or accessory of equal capability of non-performing piece of equipment while repairs are being completed.

Section 3.4.4.5:

Monthly volume of 300,000 50,000+ minimum duty cycle.

Section 3.4.5.1:

Must be capable of AES, AMS, APS, ATS, AS and Margin Shift;

Section 3.5.6.2:

Vendor shall produce payment for both any State Specific Administrative Fee and the WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fee within 30 60 days after the end of the calendar quarter of the closing of the reporting period.

Section 3.5.12.3:

Moves, device pickups and device trade-ins must be accomplished within 30 calendar days of the request
Section 5.4.2.3

Leases may be bought out and devices returned to the owning lessor, although fair market value, operational, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge.  The termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments and may not exceed more than four (4) month service and supply base or 25% of the remaining term, whichever is less.

Section 5.4.2.5(B)

Scans on multifunctional devices, digital duplicators, and scanners are not included in the cost-per-copy calculation.

Section 5.4.2.5(C)

Either No minimums or monthly fees may be offered shall be applicable for this pricing model; tiered pricing may be used.

Attachment D – Section 29:
The Contractor warrants for a period of one year a minimum of 90 days from the date of Acceptance that: (a) the Product performs according to all specific claims that the Contractor made in its response to the solicitation, (b) the Product is suitable for the ordinary purposes for which such Product is used, (c) the Product is suitable for any special purposes identified in the solicitation or for which the Purchasing Entity has relied on the Contractor’s skill or judgment, (d) the Product is designed and manufactured in a commercially reasonable manner, and (e) the Product is free of defects.  Upon breach of the warranty, the Contractor will repair or replace (at no charge to the Purchasing Entity) the Product whose nonconformance is discovered and made known to the Contractor.  If the repaired and/or replaced Product proves to be inadequate, or fails of its essential purpose, the Contractor will refund the full amount of any payments that have been made. The rights and remedies of the parties under this warranty are in addition to any other rights and remedies of the parties provided by law or equity, including, without limitation, actual damages, and, as applicable and awarded under the law, to a prevailing party, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs. 
Attachment I - Cost Schedule:

Below are updated Pricing Schedules for each Group.  Pricing for each proposed group must be provided as requested using these updated spreadsheets.

Group A Pricing Schedule

[image: image9.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group A Pricing Schedule.xls


Group B Pricing Schedule

[image: image10.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group B Pricing Schedule.xls


Group C Pricing Schedule

[image: image11.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group C Pricing Schedule.xls


Group D Pricing Schedule

[image: image12.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group D Pricing Schedule.xls


Group E Pricing Schedule

[image: image13.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group E Pricing Schedule.xls


Group F Pricing Schedule

[image: image14.emf]ATTACHMENT I -  NEW Group F Pricing Schedule.xls


Attachment N - States Intent to Participate:

Alabama

Alaska

Connecticut


[image: image15.emf]Connecticut T&Cs.pdf


Hawaii

Idaho

Maine

Missouri

Montana

New Mexico

North Dakota

Oregon

Rhode Island

South Carolina

Utah

Vermont

Washington
Questions and Answers to RFP:

1. Will there be a pre-bid meeting for RFP 3091? If yes, please provide the location and date.

No; see Section 7 of the RFP.
2. The RFP requires the respondent to be the Manufacturer, and Section 2.1 defines “Manufacturer” as “a company that, as its primary business function, designs, assembles, owns the trademark/patent and markets multifunction devices.” If the products proposed in response to the RFP are manufactured by a non-US parent company, will the State of Nevada/WSCA-NASPO accept a response to the RFP from the sole US-based, wholly owned subsidiary of that parent corporation?

Yes.
3. Section 3.6.1 and 3.4.7.4 require EPEAT registration for all devices within two years of contract award. Will the State of Nevada/WSCA-NASPO consider alternative qualifications or non-US certifications in combination with other documentation of environmentally responsible manufacturing and business practices (either while EPEAT is pending or as a substitution for registration)?

No.
4. RFP Document, Page 7, 1.9 WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fee 1.9.1 – The fee is for products and services, can you please clarify what “services” include? Does this include maintenance? If so, we respectfully request for WSCA-NASPO to consider not requiring having the admin fee applicable to the maintenance. This limits local dealer participation and billing, due to the requirement of reporting the meters for the admin fee report and check. There are other cooperative contracts, such as AEPA and US Communities that do not require their admin fee on the maintenance. This would be in both WSCA’s and the awarded vendors best interest, in order for WSCA to be on the same level playing field as these competing contracts, and would encourage more interest and participation by local dealers in each state. We strongly support the use of dealers in representing their manufacturer under this contract. It is however, difficult to a manufacturer to collect service fees from each dealer for maintenance services to pay WSCA and Participating States as stated above. We would like to recommend that it be acceptable for a manufacturer to increase the administrative fee on the equipment and software, and remove the admin fee for the service. If so, can we propose a higher admin fee for equipment and software in our response, and then negotiate this fee with WSCA, and be permitted to reflect the final admin fee in our WSCA pricing?

Any services provided to a Participating State or Entity through a resulting contract of the RFP.  Yes.  Request is declined.  No.
5. RFP Document, Page 7, Item 1.9.1 – States that the Administrative fee is due no later than 60 days following the end of each calendar quarter whereas on Page 32, Item 3.5.6.2 states that it’s due within 30 days of the closing of the reporting period. Which is correct?

Reports are due within thirty (30) days after the end of the calendar quarter and then the check for WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fee within sixty (60) days after the end of the calendar quarter.  See Revisions to RFP above.
6. RFP Document, Page 7, 2.1, Acceptance – Please confirm that after acceptance of the Equipment through a delivery and acceptance certificate, that the underlying equipment cannot be rejected?

Rejection of equipment would follow the warranty, lemon clause, or any cancellation terms allowed for in the Master Service Agreement or the Participating Addendum.
7. RFP Document, Page 8, 2.1, Capital Lease - The last bullet of the definition of "Capital Lease" provides for lease renewal. How is this renewal possible if the equipment is owned by the customer?

See Revisions to RFP above.

8. RFP Document Page 15, Definition of Power Protection – This is the only section of the bid that discusses power protection. Are we required to offer power filters standard or as an option in this RFP?

Power filters are standard and will be provided by the manufacturer.
9. RFP Document Page 19, 3.1 Segments - The segments in Group A and B start at 31ppm. There is a significant amount of customers, including small state agency offices, schools, and rural cities and counties, that have a need for smaller machines. We have sold over 300 (20-25ppm) units under the 1715 contract ourselves. This bid is designed to meet the needs of a wide range of eligible customers in all 50 states. This a broad contract that in order to encourage state and political subdivision participation should have a wider variety of speed ranges available to meet these needs. Today, we use WSCA 1715 to prevent customers from having to go out to bid, this has been successful because all of the speeds and products they need are available on 1 contract. Almost every state that goes out to bid has a 20-25 category, if this is not available under the WSCA-NASPO 3091 contract, this will force many states and customers to go out to bid. We recommend that the following adjustments be made to the segments, to offer as many product offerings as possible under the resulting contract: Group A and B: Add Segment A2A for A4 devices (up to 8.5” x 14”) Add Segment A2B for 20-30ppm (up to 11” x 17”)

See Revisions to RFP above.

10. RFP Document Page 21, 3.2 Proposal Requirements, 3.2.1 - If we carry another manufacturer’s product (not private labeled), and can provide a letter of supply / teaming agreement from that manufacturer authorizing us to sell and service their product, may we offer these products?

No, unless meeting the requirements of Section 3.2.2 of the RFP. 
11. RFP Document Page 21, 3.2 Proposal Requirements, 3.2.2 – Please clarify what is meant by “Other devices may be allowed for production (100 + pages per minute) or wide format configurations”?

Devices 100+ pages per minute or wide format configurations do not have to be private labeled.  

12. RFP Document Page 22, 3.3.2, Authorized Dealers – “…The decision about the suitability of dealers will be solely that of the Participating State Contract Administrator….” Please allow this to be a mutual decision. A vendor may not have statewide coverage if a State unilaterally eliminates dealers from participating.

No.

13. RFP Document, Page 23, 3.3.6, Device Inspection/Testing/Acceptance - Please confirm that after acceptance of the Equipment through a delivery and acceptance certificate, that the underlying equipment cannot be rejected? Is there a rejection right after delivery and acceptance certificate is signed?

See Question #6 above.
14. RFP Document Page 26, 3.4.1.6 - Bypass paper supplies on production print devices becomes unavailable when adding additional paper trays for segment 5 and above. We suggest eliminating the bypass paper supply requirement or create separate segments for production print.

No.

15. RFP Document Page 30, Item 3.4.11.2, Lemon Clause - Is the useful life to be determined by the age or number of copies? Please consider changing this to the age of the machine such as below: Vendor must guarantee that the quality of products that (1) meet factory specifications and (2) be compatible with your network, or be replaced with an equivalent model: • First two years: replacement will be a brand new MFP • After two years: replacement may be new or refurbished Please also include that the customer must have notified the vendor of the issue and that the vendor must have had time to escalate the issue for service. For notification purposes, can this just be published on our web site? If not, how is customer to be notified?

The useful life is dependent on the device and in accordance with the manufacturer's published performance specifications. No.  No.  Customer must be notified at the time of lease or purchase.
16. RFP Document Page 31, 3.5.3 Service Contracts – Please clarify that if a customer enters into a 36-month lease, and decides to renew their lease beyond the initial term that they can continue under a service and supply contract (not to exceed 60 months total for the lease or maintenance).

Yes as long as the lease and service co-terminate.  

17. RFP Document Page 31, 3.5.3 Service Contracts – How long is the service and supply pricing firm for on a lease? For example, if a customer renews their S&S contract beyond the initial term, can the S&S pricing be escalated?

Service and supply pricing must be firm for the term of the lease.  Renewals may be negotiated; however, pricing can never exceed the Master Agreement pricing.
18. RFP Document Page 31, 3.5.3 Service Contracts – How long is the service and supply pricing firm for on a purchased unit? If they want maintenance on a purchased machine after the 60 months has been reached, how does the customer obtain maintenance on owned equipment?

Service and supply term and pricing are to be negotiated with Customer.  Maintenance on owned equipment is determined by the Customer. 
19. RFP Document, Page 31, 3.5.5.1, Billing and Invoicing - Can you better define 'timely and accurate? Vendors need to mitigate risk of non-payment.

See Section 6 of the RFP. 
20. RFP Document, Page 31, 3.5.5.2, Billing and Invoicing – Please clarify and define what “data set” is? Who is responsible for providing this proof?

“Data Set” is backup documentation for the billing.  The Awarded Vendor is responsible for providing this proof.
21. RFP Document Page 34, 3.7.4.1 - Can you define the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Requirement? Is the NIST requirement based on ISO 15408 Common Criteria certification? Is this a requirement for all Groups?

The State chooses not to respond.  Yes. Yes.  
22. RFP Document, Page 35, Software, 3.7.5.2 - Can P.O.s be submitted with software only when there is existing equipment?

Yes, unless excluded by the Participating State or Entity.
23. RFP Document Page 36, Item 4.1.5 - Can a current WSCA vendor list the WSCA contract or do we need to list individual agencies? If individual agencies, do we have to list all or how many?

Vendors may list the WSCA contract if they are a current contractor for the WSCA Master Agreement.
24. RFP Document Page 39, 4.2.1.7 - Vendor must notify the user of the intended use of any subcontractors not identified within their original proposal and provide the information originally requested in the RFP in Section 4.2, Subcontractor Information. The vendor must receive user approval prior to subcontractor commencing work. Question-What type of approval-written, verbal?

Written approval in form of acceptance of a contract.

25. RFP Document Page 42, Leasing Programs, 5.4.2.1 – Vendors need to be able to offer customers a coterminous lease rate chart for 1-60 months. Not only for a customer that may want to add an accessory late into their lease or rental term, but also for customers that acquire equipment using the lowest term available and want to add options shortly thereafter. This has been a challenge on the current contract; we were hoping we could address this in the new RFP. Please confirm that we can offer co-term rates for 1-60 months, and revise Attachment I to add months 1-35. (Example: Customer enters into a 36-month lease, and 6 months later they want to add a finisher, there is no 30-month lease rate available for them to do this on the current chart). We also noticed that the co-term lease rate chart starts at 36-months, but there is a 24-month term available for the cancellable rental. If you are requesting co-term rates for the cancellable rental, and there is a 24-month term available, what was the intent for these customers if they needed to order additional options after the initial install? We feel this is further reason to adjust the co-term lease rate chart.

Customer to make this determination.
26. RFP Document, Page 42, 5.4.1 Leasing Programs - Can we use Treasury Swap Rates or LIBOR like Term Swap Rates instead of the daily treasury yield curve?

No.
27. RFP Document, Page 42, 5.4.2.3, Leasing, Rentals and Short-Term Rentals – Please clarify that the termination amount is the lease payments times the remaining term. Also, FMV leases are not included as a plan that can have a termination charge, is that an oversight?

Yes. See Revisions to RFP above.
28. RFP Document, Page 43, 5.4.2.9, Leasing, Rentals and Short-Term Rentals - Is flexibility going to be included? How much? Is this applicable to accessories only or also to units?

Question is not clear.

29. RFP Document Page 43, 5.4.2.5 Cost-per-copy – It states here that vendors do not have to offer the cpc program upfront and that it won’t be evaluated. If we do not offer the cpc program in our initial offer, can we then add it to the contract later or for use for a specific state through their PA process? Or do we have to offer it upfront in our offer in order for a state to sign a PA with us at a later date for the cpc program?

CPC program needs to be offered in initial response in order for it to be included as an option to Customer.  
30. RFP Document Page 44, 5.4.3 Service and Supplies Inclusions, 5.4.3.2 – If the vendor opts to include staples in their maintenance pricing, rather than have a separate price for the customer to add them would this be acceptable? We have found on the current contract that 98% of customers want staples included, and often times forget to add the additional staples rate into the service and supply price, which has resulted in having them do multiple po’s and additional po’s just when they need to order staples. For the ease of the customer’s administrative process and for budget purposes it is preferred to have the staples included in the price upfront.

Yes; however, vendors must clearly note that staples are included in pricing.
31. RFP Document Page 44, 5.4.3 Service and Supplies Inclusions, 5.4.3.5 – It is the industry standard to charge 2 clicks for 11” x 17”. Requiring 1 click for 11” x 17” will significantly increase WSCA and its customer’s service and supply pricing. This is the equivalent of two (2) 8.5” x 11” sheets. We request to have this changed to 2 clicks for these devices.

No.
32. RFP Document Page 45, 5.4.7.2, Special Promotions - Can this be in the form of a notice to the lead state if promo is for all participating states?

No; the lead state will not be responsible for notifying Participating States or Entities of special promotions.
33. RFP Document, Page 45, 5.4.7.3, Special Promotions - Please describe what E-Rate pricing is?

E-Rate is the commonly used name for the Schools and Libraries Program of the Universal Service Fund, which is administered by the Universal Service Administrative Company (USAC) under the direction of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC).

34. RFP Document, Page 45, 6.1.1, Payment – Are these payment terms for NV placements only or does this apply to all the states that are participating?

Payments terms will be for the Master Agreement; however, the terms may be changed in individual Participating Addendums.
35. RFP Document Page 46, 6.1.3, P-card Acceptance – Can the vendor charge a nominal fee if the customer chooses to pay with their p-card?

No.
36. RFP Document Page 55, 9.6.4.3 – Public Records CD – We request that the vendors not have to provide this until after an award is made. Since this is a negotiable contract, and vendors do negotiate the terms with WSCA, it is likely that what is submitted will not be the final documents and some of these files will need to be revised.

No.  Upon contract awards, ALL proposals submitted will be available to the public, whether or not the proposing vendor receives an award.
37. RFP Document, Page 61, 11.2.5, Contract Terms and Conditions - Is the last sentence (supremacy sentence) applicable only to NV deals or does this apply to all Participating Addenda for various states?

This applies to the Master Agreement.
38. Attachment D, Page 3 of 20, Section 6 - The first sentence states that prices and rates are fixed for the initial term. This is in conflict with section 5.4.1 of the RFP. Please clarify which is correct?

Lease factor quotes may be adjusted per Section 5.4.1 of the RFP.  The pricing for the subsequent contract will be expressed as a discount from the MSRP, which cannot be reduced for the term of the contract. 

39. Attachment D, Page 3 of 20, Section 7 – Please clarify the intent of this section. The language isn’t clear that existing leases, at the time of the master contract termination, will survive until their individual terms expire. Does the survivability clause on page 25 of the RFP - 3.3.10 take precedence?

Attachment D – Section 7 deals with Cancellation.  Section 3.3.10 of the RFP deals with survivability of PA’s in the event the Master Agreement expires or is cancelled.
40. Attachment D, Page 16 of 20, Section 31 - Title to the product transfers to the lessee upon acceptance. This is in conflict with FMV, operational, etc. leases. Please clarify which is correct.

Section 31 applies to the Purchasing Entity, not lessee.
41. Attachment I, Group A & B – Since the speeds are such wide ranges, can a vendor offer 1 service and supply rate for each speed machine they offer? For example, 41-69ppm Segment A4, the service/supply rate would be lower as the speed of the machine gets higher, so we would like to be able to offer a cpc for a 45ppm that is different than that of a 55 and 65ppm. If we are required to offer the same s&s rate per segment, then vendors will have to bid their highest rate for all models in that segment (for future add-on models as well), resulting in the customer paying a higher price. We also see this being a concern for other states as well as polysubs that may want to participate.

See Section 3.2.3 of the RFP.
42. Attachment I, Group A & B Price Sheets - Due to there being one Group that includes all copier segments, Production Print devices will be in the same segment as walk up copiers. For example, a 65 PPM Color Production Print device would be in the same segment as a 45 PPM Color walk up copier. This would result in manufacturers having to offer the same discount from list. The discount range from MSRP is different from a walk up copier to a production print device. Also, for evaluation purposes, it would be very difficult to compare. We suggest that there be separate segments for production print devices only. This will prevent the state from paying production print prices for walkup devices.

Vendor may propose multiple makes and models in segments with different discounts. Vendors may add additional columns in price sheets, as applicable.
43. Attachment I, Group B & C – The service and supply price pages need to be revised to include both b&w and color impressions and overages.

See Revisions to RFP above.
44. Attachment I, Group D – Where do we list our printer extended warranties and service pricing?

See Revisions to RFP above.
45. Attachment I, Group D – Where do we list our supply pricing?

See Revisions to RFP above.
46. Attachment I, Group D – Traditionally printers are not leased, due to the low purchase prices. Are vendors required to offer leasing vehicles for Group D?

No, may be offered as an option.
47. Attachment I, Group C & D – Why aren’t there segments for b&w devices and a separate segment for color/b&w devices? The discounts for b&w devices vs color/b&w devices are not within the same range. In order to have both b&w and color devices available for customers, it would be in the best interest of WSCA to have separate segments or groups for b&w and color/b&w. This should be set up like the Copier Groups A & B. As the spec reads now we would only be able to submit our color devices and not any of our b/w only devices. If creating new groups would be too difficult, then please consider allowing vendors to bid a b/w model and a color/bw device in each segment that’s already on the price sheets (i.e. A3 B&W & A3 Color/B&W)

See Revisions to RFP above.
48. Attachment I, All Groups – Does the marking engine discount include all necessary option components needed in order to meet the minimum Device Configurations on page 25-28 3.4 Device Configurations? Or can those items (i.e. RADF) be listed separately as long as they are available options?

Yes. No.
49. Attachment I, All Groups – If a vendor does not have a machine to bid in a segment at the time of the bid opening, but introduces a machine that meets the specifications and speed after award, will they be permitted to add that device to the contract?

As long as the vendor was awarded the Group; see Section 3.3.1 of the RFP.
50. Attachment I, All Groups – During the evaluation process, are you only going to be evaluating the 2 or 3 segments selected on the Configuration Cost tab?

Configuration Costs will be used in evaluation; however, discounts for all groups and segments will be considered during evaluation.

51. Attachment I, All Groups – Can we bid the same model in multiple segments as long as it meets the specifications?

No.
52. Attachment I, All Groups – Can the discount off MSRP be 2 decimals, such as 57.24%?

Yes.
53. Attachment I, All Groups, Configuration Cost Tab – If one or more of the components of the evaluation configuration is included in the base machine price; do we just leave that cell at $0.00? How can we indicate to WSCA that it’s included, so that it does not appear we do not have that option available?

Yes.  Vendor should make note of included items on the table, with pricing.
54. Attachment I, All Groups, Configuration Cost Tab – If a vendor does not have one of the options requested available, how will this be evaluated? How do we indicate that an option is not available? We cannot list N/A in the pricing cell because it will affect the formula.

Vendor should make note of any options that are not available on the table.

55. Attachment I, Group P Detailed Sales report – This is the old report that was originally required for the current WSCA contract. WSCA no longer requires this as the only reporting required on the current contract is the online reporting. Is it WSCA’s intent to require the old format back?

Yes.
56. Attachment O, SLA – Service Level Agreement (SLA) requirements are those similar to those in the MFD/Copier industry. These are much more stringent than those found in the Desktop/Network Printer industry. Printers (Group D) should be next business day as the standard SLA as opposed to four hour response. Please revise.

As stated in the RFP, the Service Level Agreement is meant to be a model.   Awarded Vendors are to negotiate their own SLA with each Participating State or Entity, which may differ based on the devices purchased.

57. Generic Question - Hard Drive Sanitation pricing is not addressed in the RFP. Can a vendor submit their pricing if the customer chooses to have the vendor come out and do the HD Sanitation for them? Or is this handled on a case by case basis out of the contract?

See Section 3.7.4.3 of the RFP.

58. Generic Question - Will the Participating Agreements have a place for the vendor to insert their lease language as it does on the current contract? We believe it would be better served to have the terms in the Participating Addendum given that is the first document in the order of precedence.

This will be negotiated with the Awarded Vendor and the Participating State or Entity.
59. 3.1 – Group A – Copiers B&W. Segment A3 eliminates key products with speeds below 31ppm that are available on the current contract. Current key products with speeds of 25 – 30 ppm on the WSCA contract will now fall in limbo. These products support 11x17 output which prevents their inclusion in Group D which is limited to smaller size output. We request Group A, Segment A3 be expanded to begin with speeds of at least 25ppm.

See Revisions to RFP above.

60. 3.1 – Group B – Copiers Color. 20ppm color products are an important entry level product for color offering the same capabilities as the higher speed products at a lower price point. Since these products support 11x17 output these products are also ineligible for inclusion in Group D which is definitely creating a gap for the users. We request Group B, Segment B3 to be expanded to allow for these key products with a beginning speed of 20ppm.

See Revisions to RFP above.

61. 3.2.2 - Please clarify exactly what is meant by “private labeled by the Vendor” and “other devices for production in excess of 100 ppm.”

See Question #11 above.
62. 3.3.13 - Volume Placements. Can you set some parameters around this requirement or do you consider 2 units a volume placement?

No, may be determined by Participating State or Entity and/or Awarded Vendor.
63. 3.4.3.1 – Printer Specifications. The inability to offer 11x17 will eliminate some key printer products by all vendors. We are requesting the printer specifications allow for 11x17 to address certain printer output requirements of your users such as commonly used spreadsheets.

See Revisions to RFP above.

64. From page 32, section 3.5.10 - Dealer Guidance "Will the WSCA/NASPO Cooperative Purchasing Organization allow awarded vendors the ability to distribute/sell their awarded categories via an established dealer/reseller channel whereby purchase orders, services, and supplies are purchased through authorized partners?" "If yes, does the dealer/reseller have to maintain their own separate website from the awarded vendor?"
Purchase orders, services and supplies may be purchases through authorized dealers.  Contract requirements such as websites, reporting, etc. are the responsibility of the Awarded Vendor.
65. From page 32, section 3.5.10 - Dealer Guidance "Will the WSCA/NASPO Cooperative Purchasing Organization allow the authorized dealer/reseller to bill/ship/collect/receive the end user directly on behalf of the awarded vendor referencing the awarded vendor's WSCA contract? Or is it the responsibility of the awarded vendor to bill/ship/collect/receive?"
Authorized Dealers may bill/ship/collect/receive the end user directly as decided between the Awarded Vendor and Participating State or Entity. Contract requirements such as websites, reporting, etc. are the responsibility of the Awarded Vendor.
66. Section 1.1 states, “Vendors are encouraged to expand upon the specifications to add service and value consistent with RFP requirements”. We understand the RFP requires new or newly manufactured devices as the primary contract offering. However, many school districts and other political subdivisions are pressed financially and have requested a mix of new and remanufactured equipment to lower the overall spend. The determination, of course, of allowing remanufactured equipment to be marketed within a state can be addressed through the PA process. In light of the benefits, are vendors allowed to offer remanufactured equipment as an additional offering in their bid response?

Remanufactured equipment may be proposed as additional offerings only. 

67. The definition section, Page 14, defines Operational lease as “Operational lease is used to acquire devices on a relatively short term basis with no benefit of ownership to the lessee; no buy-out will be considered.” The current WSCA contract defines it differently as “All operational leases shall have an end of term buyout to own value that is determined prior to the lease inception, although this value may or may not be disclosed by the Successful Vendor, based on a fixed dollar amount or percentage of funded value. Such leases shall be subject to monthly payment reduction by the Successful Vendor upon renewal, based upon the depreciated value. The depreciated value must be disclosed to the Customer at the time of the renewal; and the renewal rate is subject to the same terms and conditions under the contract with the Successful Vendor. The industry standard definition of operational lease does provide an end of term buyout option. Through the PA process, individual states may decide to limit the buyout element for as deemed appropriate for state. We respectfully submit that the definition, as used in the current WSCA agreement, replace the definition as stated in the RFP.

No.
68. Segment Group A, Copiers B&W, Section 3.1, begins with a speed range of 31 PPM. We request that a 20 to 30 PPM category be added as this product is sold particularly to the political subdivision marketplace.

See Revisions to RFP above.

69. Section 3.2.4 “Manufacturers may only submit one response and may not submit multiple responses for any additional brand names”. This same question was addressed in the current WSCA MFP Agreement #1715, Amendment 1, Q129. WSCA allowed OEM Manufacturers, which market their products under different brand names, to submit one response with the brands priced equally. Please affirm that the same position is taken here.

Yes, with all brands at the same discounted pricing.
70. Segment Group F, Scanners, Section 3.1 - Begins with a scanner speed of 50 PPM. We request that a 30 to 50 PPM category be added as there are many customers that require this size of product.

See Revisions to RFP above.

71. WSCA/NASPO Master Agreement T&C’s, Attachment D, Order of Precedence - Places the Statement of Work [SOW] in the fourth position. SOW documents are customized for each engagement as it outlines project essentials, provides timelines, and memorializes the overall understanding between the parties. Though we understand the State Participating Amendment [PA] being listed as highest in Order of Precedence, as individual state PA’s are being executed and if approved by the State, are we able to list the SOW in the PA as receiving the second highest order of precedence since it is an important ordering document?

This is to be negotiated between the Awarded Vendor and Participating State or Entity.
72. Section 3.4.1.8, Device Configurations, allows products to be bid with “Paper size capacity up to 11X17”. Are we able to offer products that print up to 8.5 X14 as secondary models? These types of devices offer a tremendous cost savings to the customers.

No.
73. Section 3.3.11, Termination for Non-Appropriation - Recently there has been an increase in non-appropriation cases. To add further clarity to this issue, we respectfully suggest the inclusion of the following language to this section – “Non appropriations will have deemed appropriate if any of the following has occurred

a. Governing body fails to appropriate sufficient monies in any fiscal period to rentals and other payments coming due under a schedule to any WSCA lease in the next succeeding fiscal period for any equipment which will perform services and functions performed by the product covered by an such schedule

b. other funds are not available for such payments and

c. the non appropriation of funds did not occur from a failure or act to request such funds”

No.
74. Section 3.4.3.1, Printer Specification - “Device does not copy as the primary function and does not allow 11” x 17” paper”. There are printers that print on 11X17 which are required for specific applications. Are we able to include these printers in our offering? This will serve certain customers and fill a marketplace need. 

See Revisions to RFP above.

75. Section 3.4.3.2, Printer Specifications - Identifies two technology types - inkjet or laser print engine. LED technology is a growing area of the printer market as it offers lower cost and other benefits. Given the broad range of potential customers under this contract, we respectfully request allowing LED technology, along with inkjet and laser print engine, to be offered on the price schedule.

See Revisions to RFP above.

76. Section 3.4.5.1, Group F, Scanner Specifications - “Must be capable of AES, AMS, APS, ATS, AS and Margin Shift”. These specifications relate to copier technology and not necessarily scanner technology. Please delete this section as the specifications do not fully apply to scanners.

See Revisions to RFP above.

77. Section 3.4.10, Excessive Service and Downtime - “Equipment, including all accessories and software, supplied through this contract shall be capable of continuous operation. Therefore, Awarded Vendor shall guarantee that all contract equipment will be operational at least 98% of normal business hours”. We respectfully suggest that the uptime percentage be lowered to 96% as this represents an industry standard.

See Revisions to RFP above.
78. Section 3.4.11.1 - Warranty, “Devices must carry a minimum 90 day warranty that it is free from defects in material and workmanship.” This conflicts with the language in the WSCA/NASPO Master Contract T&C’s, Section 29, which states, “The Contractor warrants for a period of one year from the date of installation”. We understand that the WSCA/NASPO Master is a template used for all WSCA agreements, however a 90 day warranty is the standard in our industry so please modify the Master accordingly.

See Revisions to RFP above.

79. Section 3.5.5.1 - Billing and Invoicing - “Awarded Vendor shall maintain timely and accurate invoicing”. Establishing a cure period addressing invoicing issues is important as it does impact the potential penalties as outlined in the Service Level Agreement. We respectfully suggest amending this section and adding, “Awarded vendors are afforded a 30 day cure period to address billing or invoicing issues upon written notification of an invoicing problem”.

No.
80. Section 3.5.5.2, Vendor Audits - To add further clarity to the audit process, we respectfully request that the following be added to this section, “Upon the prior written request of the State and no more frequently than once a year during the term of this Agreement, Service Provider will provide copies of the documentation that is reasonably necessary for the State to confirm its payment obligations under any invoice. Service Provider will assist the State in connection with its efforts to verify the completeness and accuracy of the invoices. In no event, however, will Service Provider be obligated to disclose any confidential information not directly pertaining to the invoice in question”.

No.
81. Section 3.5.7.2 - “The software included in the Master Agreement shall not be utilized as a standalone imaging solution but as a means to enhance the capabilities of the devices”. We understand that software offered and listed, under an awarded vendor’s schedule, can only be listed if it empowers a device that is also approved and listed on the schedule. Some customers wish to acquire software however, in order to empower a currently installed device which may not be listed on the schedule. This allows customers to utilize software applications, enhancing their workflow efficiencies, without the financial burden of acquiring equipment immediately. Please confirm that customers are able to purchase software in this context.

No.
82. Section 5.4.1 - “In order for the Awarded Vendor to alter the bid lease rates, all lease rates must be indexed against the US Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates”. Treasury rates are published based on 1,2,3, & 5 year rates and does not include a 4 year rate. An industry standard is to base leasing rates on “Interest Rate Swaps” as published by the Federal Reserve - (http://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/h15/update/ We suggest offering vendors a choice of being able to choose, at the time of bid submission, either Interest Rate Swaps or the US Daily Treasury Yield Curve Rates as the basis to address this contract function.

See Question #26 above.
83. Section 5.4.2.3 - “Leases may be bought out and devices returned to the owning lessor, although operational, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge.” Please Add “FMV leases” to this list of acquisition methods as FMV is the most popular type of leasing.

See Question #26 above.
84. Section 5.4.2.3 - “The termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments and may not exceed more than four (4) month service and supply base or 25% of the remaining term, whichever is less.” This same question was addressed in the current WSCA MFP Agreement #1715, Amendment 1, Q59. It was affirmed that the termination language, “may not exceed more than four (4) month service and supply base or 25% of the remaining term, whichever is less”, referred to the service contract and not the equipment. Please confirm this understanding.

Yes.  The limitation on the termination charge refers to the “service and supply base” charge only.
85. WSCA/NASPO T&C’s, Attachment D, Page 2 - “Product means any equipment, software (including embedded software), documentation, service or other deliverable supplied or created by the Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement. The term Products, supplies and services, and products and services are used interchangeably in these terms and conditions”. Third Party Software, empowering the device, is increasingly being sold with many configurations. Software products, which may not be embedded, are sold and subject to the End User Licensing Agreements [EULA] of the software manufacturer. To add clarity we respectfully suggest adding the following to this section, “Unless otherwise agreed, software is provided subject to the terms and conditions of the license applicable to such software”.

No.  If such EULA’s are included, that should be addressed in the individual Participating Addendum or in an individual Offer/Purchase Order. 

86. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 10, Defaults and Remedies - As it relates to a Participating Entity, operating under a Participating Addendum, adding a Dispute Resolution provision at the Master contract level may help resolve complex contract performance issues. Such a provision will encourage parties to fully examine all possible solutions and comprehensively work through complicated issues. Though this can be addressed by each state during the PA process, we respectfully suggest incorporation of the following into this section as an initial framework: “Notwithstanding anything to the contrary established by the State in the Participating Amendment, In the event of any disagreement by an end user Participating Entity using the agreement, regarding performance under or interpretation of this Agreement, and prior to the commencement of any formal proceedings, the parties shall continue performance as set forth in this Agreement and shall attempt in good faith to reach a negotiated resolution by engaging in a dispute resolution process as follows: 1. Either party may commence this dispute resolution process by giving the other party notice of its desire to resolve a dispute pursuant to this process. 2. Each party shall promptly designate uninvolved representatives who are authorized to bind their respective organization and who have the authority to resolve the dispute. 3. Such representatives shall meet in an effort to agree on a resolution to the dispute. 4. Unless the representatives agree otherwise, if the parties have not agreed upon a resolution within thirty (30) days of the date notice is given under subsection 1 above, then this Dispute Resolution process shall be deemed to be completed.

No.  This may be addressed in individual Participating Addendums. 

87. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 14,(b),2, Indemnification - To provide further clarity we suggest incorporation of the following to this section – “Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such a claim is made or appears likely to be made, the Indemnified Party agrees to permit Contractor to enable Indemnified Party to continue to use the Product, or to modify it, or replace it with one that is at least functionally equivalent. If Contractor determines that none of these alternatives is reasonably available, Indemnified Party agrees to return the Product to Contractor on its written request. Contractor will then give Indemnified Party a credit equal to Indemnified Party’s net book value provided Indemnified Party has followed generally-accepted accounting principles; This is Contractor’s entire obligation to Indemnified Party regarding any claim of infringement.”

No.

88. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 19, License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property - As stated previously, customers are subject to End User Licensing Agreements [EULA] of the Software Manufacturer and the rights established in those agreements. Awarded Vendors are able to confer rights as allowed but are not able to create rights not granted in the EULA. Therefore, to add clarity we respectfully request including the following in this section – “Software provided will be subject to the terms and conditions of the license terms provided with such software.”

No.

89. Section 3.4.4.5, Duplicator Specification - “Monthly volume of 300,000+ minimum duty cycle”. Many duplicators in the market place begin with a duty cycle of 50,000 prints. Please adjust the duty cycle to a minimum of 50K vs. 300Kas this will allow additional products to be included in the bid submissions.

See Revisions to RFP above.
90. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 7, Cancellation - This section addresses Cancellation of the Master Agreement and states “Any cancellation under this provision shall not affect the rights and obligations attending orders outstanding at the time of cancellation”. Please confirm that existing obligations, such as leased equipment, are not impacted by the cancellation of the master price agreement.

Correct; see Section 3.3.10 of the RFP.
91. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 6, Price and Rate Guarantee - Please confirm that price guarantees does not impact a vendors ability to update leasing rates as set forth in Section 5.4.1. We believe this is intent but want to be sure.

Yes.
92. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 28, Standard of Performance and Acceptance – This section as presently written, in effect, provides a 30 day trial for every placement. Trials in our industry do occur but are not necessary for each order. The RFP contains a 30 day trial provision, set forth in Section 3.3.12, and thus customers that require a trial are afforded that opportunity. If problems exist with the equipment, after installation, customers receive warranty protections, are able to cancel for non-performance, or can request a “like for like replacement”. Given the broad range of customer protections, we respectfully request this Section be deleted as it not necessary and introduces an installation and product acceptance process which is non-standard in our industry.

No.  The language offers three references, the general one, one identified in the solicitation (which would be Section 3.3.12), or the Participating Addendum; it does not rank these, so 3.3.12 or a period identified in a Participating Addendum would take precedence.

93. Are vendors able to submit their own leasing forms, as part of the bid submission, and if approved by a participating state, use the approved forms as ordering documentation?

No.
94. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 28, Warranty, Section (b), currently reads, “The Product is suitable for the ordinary purposes for which such Product is used”. We suggest a slight modification to this definition and respectfully request this be amended to read - “The Product performs to the manufacturer’s specifications”.

No.

95. 5.4.2.5 “Cost-per-Copy programs may be allowed at Customers request. Cost-per-Copy is not required to be offered by Awarded Vendors and will not be evaluated in Vendor’s response…. No minimums or monthly fees shall be applicable for this pricing model; tiered pricing may be used.” CPC schedules are used by a few states. The States that allow vendors to charge a monthly minimum have a very competitive schedule. Though vendors are able to offer “no minimum” schedules, these are always priced higher than those schedules that include minimums. In light of the pricing advantages, and since this is not part of vendor evaluation are we able to provide pricing for both types of schedules – one with minimums and one without?

See Revisions to RFP above.

96. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 17, Insurance, Section (c) – “Such policies shall also reference this Master Agreement…” We generally do not reference a Master Agreement on an insurance policy but will reference the Master Agreement on the certificate of insurance. Is this acceptable?

Yes.

97. WSCA Master Contract T&C’s, Attachment D, Section 17, Insurance, Section (d) – “Prior to commencement of performance, Contractor shall provide to the Lead State a written endorsement to the Contractor’s general liability insurance policy or other documentary evidence acceptable to the Lead State that (1) names the Participating States…”. We respectfully request the option to change to word "names" with the word “listed”. As a standard practice our organization does not "Name Additional Insured's" on policies rather will use an endorsement to confirm "blanket" additional insured status. Will this be allowed for this agreement?

Yes.

98. Section 3.6.1 – “All devices shall meet EPEAT Bronze registered standard, as stated in Section 3.4.7.4.” There two additional standards beyond bronze both silver and gold. Please confirm the intent here is bronze standard or higher and not just the bronze standard.

Bronze standard or higher.
99. Section 3.2.2 – “Devices must be manufactured or private labeled by the Vendor. Other devices may be allowed for production (100+ pages per minute) or wide format configurations”. Similar to Wide Format units, there are very few companies that manufacturer high production scanners which are remarketed but not private labeled. Please allow Scanners to be included in the definition of other devices.

No.
100. Section 1.1 “Vendors are encouraged to expand upon the specifications to add service and value consistent with RFP requirements”. High Production Print Shops have needs that require Production Printing Continuous Form Feeding technology. This technology offers monochrome, color, and MICR capabilities. In an effort to add value, are we able to submit such a schedule to be considered in our bid submission?

Yes.
101. Section 1.9.1 – “The WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fee shall be submitted quarterly and is based on sales of products and services”. The reporting system requires vendors to report on all equipment and service sales. In our industry there is roughly a 1:1 ratio, over a 5 year period, between equipment and service sales. For example, if the price of a unit is $5000, the cost for service and supplies, over a 5 year period, approximates $5000 as well. To simplify the reporting process, we respectfully suggest that vendors be offered a choice of (a) reporting and rebating on all sales including equipment, service, and supplies or (b) reporting and rebating on equipment sales alone but doubling the rebate amount. So instead of ¼% of both equipment and service/supplies sales, vendors would remit ½% on equipment sales alone. This will benefit WSCA as the rebate is paid up-front, rather than over time, and it will benefit the vendor community as it lessens the reporting requirements to report service and supply sales. Will WSCA consider allowing this approach?
No.
102. General: Are vendors required to bid on all Categories in order to be found responsive?

No.  

103. General: Will responses to questions be shared with all bidders?

Yes.
104. Pricing: Is WSCA or participating states interested in outright Purchase under this new contract?

Yes.
105. Page 2 of 86 states, “Exceptions and/or assumptions will be considered during the evaluation process.” How will any exceptions and assumptions be factored into the scoring?

This information is confidential until an award is made.

106. Page 21 of 86, Section 3.2.2: Can Vendors propose scanners that are not private labeled and still be found responsive?

No.
107. Page 27 of 86, Section3.4.3.2 states, “Shall include an inkjet or laser print engine.” Will you accept LED printers?

See Revisions to RFP above.

108. Page 31 of 86, Section 3.5.4.2 states, “Awarded Vendors may offer additional coverage beyond normal business hours for the servicing of device and may charge an additional monthly base charge for such coverage.” Can you please elaborate on your requirements for additional coverage beyond normal business hours?

This would be determined between the Customer and Awarded Vendor.
109. Page 32 of 86, Section 3.5.8 states, “Awarded Vendors are to negotiate their own SLA with each Participating Entity at time of initiating the Participating Addendum.” Please confirm SLAs are to be included at the time of the Participating Addendum and not with the bid.

Correct.
110. Attachment O: Is this for information purposes only, or a commitment under this award?

Attachment O is meant to be a “model” Service Level Agreement; it is not a commitment under the Master Service Agreement.  
111. Page 33 of 86, Section 3.6.1 states in part, “Additionally, Awarded Vendors should be aware that Participating States or Entities may require environmental performance plans to be in place." Can you provide a description or example of an environmental performance plan?”

No, as the requirements will vary by State.
112. Page 35 of 86, 3.7.4.4 states, “Device must have technician removable hard drives that include an obligation to leave the drive in the state’s possession at termination of the placement if so mandated by the Participating State or Entity.” If this results in an additional cost, where should this be included in the Pricing Worksheet?

See Section 5.4.6 of the RFP.

113. Page 41 of 86, Section 5.2 states, “Each Vendor may submit one (1) or more models per segment within this RFP. The Vendors are cautioned to select the best device within their product offering in terms of cost, technological capabilities and service that meets or exceeds the requirements within this RFP.” While we appreciate the latitude to propose more than one model, is it WSCA's preference that Vendors offer only one model per segment that best meets the RFP requirements?

No.
114. Page 44 of 86, 5.4.3.3 states, “Service pricing must include technician installed parts with the exception of paper, staples and toner.” Traditionally, toner is included in service pricing. Can Vendors propose an alternative service pricing to include toner and still be found responsive?

Supplies include toner, see Section 5.4.3.2 of the RFP; 5.4.3.3 refers to “technician installed parts”, which a technician would not be called to install toner.
115. Page 58 of 86, 10.1.1: One of the scoring criteria is, “Demonstrated competence and ability to service the contract.” Please elaborate on the factors the committee will use to score/evaluate this requirement?

This information is confidential until an award is made.
116. RFP Document, Page 20, 3.1 Segments - There is a note under Wide Format Devices that reads "*Vendors may propose alternate print options; however, must include a method to convert to SFM." Does this mean that we can propose a wide format device that is less that 4 D Size prints per minute as long as we can convert to SFM? Attachment_I_GroupC_Price_Sheets - The list price sheet reflects MFP features and accessories. Will you provide updated sheets specific to wide format printers?

Yes.  No.
117. RFP Document, Page 6, 1.7.5 Project Overview - 1.7.5 States that each participating state must sign a Participating Addendum (PA) with its own unique terms. This contradicts much of the language throughout the Master Agreement (sections #4 & #16). Please clarify.

States or eligible entities must sign a PA in order to use any resulting contract and they may include any unique terms and conditions. These unique terms and conditions apply to that specific PA only and does not affect or change the Master Agreement for any other Participating States or Entities.
118. RFP, Page 45, 6.1.1 Financial, Payment - Lease payments must be based on invoice date not receipt. Please revise or allow the vendor to negotiate this term.

No; payments will be made after receipt of invoice.
119. Attachment D, Page 3, Section 4, Amendments - Order of precedence states that the PA is the controlling document, but this section refers to no changes to Master without written approval of lead state. If a PA is supposed to incorporate the Master yet we are relying on changes to the PA, do the contract holders have to inform the lead state on potential changes? Please provide clarification

No.  See Question #117 above.
120. Attachment D, Page 3, Section 5 a, Assignment – Would WSCA please add a provision for assign-ability of leases, excluding service obligations?

No.
121. Attachment D, Page 12, Section 22 a), Participants - This section conflicts with #4 and #16 of the Master Agreement. Please provide clarification as to which takes precedence.

See Question #117 above.
122. Attachment D, Page 15, Section 28, Standard of Performance & Acceptance - Will this be covered by the PA including a provision for execution of a D&A validating and closing the testing period?

No.
123. Attachment D, Page 16, Section 31, Title of Product - This section must include provision to exclude leases, transfer of title is not applicable on true leases.

See Question #40 above.
124. Attachments I, A, Tab 1 List Pricing Group A – Copiers B&W We respectfully request that the Column A, Pricing items be modified for Segments A6 to A9 to be Production Centric. The pricing items are MFP/MFD focused and all do not apply to Production Devices.

See Revisions to RFP above. If item is not available or does not apply, please note in spreadsheet.
125. Attachments I, C, Tab 1, List Pricing – Group C- Wideformat Devices We respectfully request the Column A, Pricing items be modified to be Wide Format centric. The Pricing items are MFP/MFD centric and most do not apply to Wide Format devices.

See Revisions to RFP above.  If item is not available or does not apply, please note in spreadsheet.
126. Attachments I, D, Tab 1 List Pricing – Printers We respectfully request the Column A, Pricing items be modified to be Printer centric. The Pricing items are MFP/MFD centric and most do not apply to Printers.

See Revisions to RFP above.  If item is not available or does not apply, please note in spreadsheet.
127. Attachments I, F, Tab 1 List Pricing – Scanners We respectfully request the Column A, Pricing items be modified to be Scanner centric. The Pricing items are MFP/MFD centric and most do not apply to Scanners.

See Revisions to RFP above.  If item is not available or does not apply, please note in spreadsheet.
128. Attachments I, A, B, C, D and F, Tab 5 Configuration Cost On the Configuration cost worksheet, there are not areas to input data for all Segments within the Group. For example, on Attachment I, A, Tab 5 Configuration Cost there is only sections for Segment A3, Segment A6 and Segment A9. Segments A4, A5, A7 and A8 are missing. We please ask these sheets be revised or advice be provided on how to input the information for missing segments.

See Section 5.1.2 of the RFP.
129. Page 27, Section 3.4.5.1 We respectfully request, the specification for AMS, ATS, AS, & APS are removed as they do not pertain to scanners.

See Revisions to RFP above.

130. Page 27, Section 3.4.5.4 What functionality is required on the control panel?

The State chooses not to respond.

131. Page 27, section 3.4.5.5 Please define what is meant by density range minimum of 3.0?

The State chooses not to respond.
132. Page 27, section 3.4.5.2 What DPI specification is required for PPM scan speed?

The State chooses not to respond.

133. Page 27, section 3.4.3 May the bidder submit A4 products as printers?

No.

134. Attachment I, A, B, C, D and F, - Paper Handling Please can you define Scanstation and expected capability and requirements?

The State chooses not to respond.
135. Attachment I, A, B, C, D and E If a bidder will bid multiple models within a segment, please advise on how they should input this in Attachment I. Do you advise that we add additional columns or create a separate worksheet for additional models?

Add additional columns, as applicable.

136. Page 26, Section 3.4.1.1 Please clarify if this specification requires an RADF/ADF to be included in the configuration cost of all Group A and Group B devices. Or must be available in our list of accessories and additional options along with the platen cover?

RADF/ADF must be included in the base configuration cost.

137. Attachment I, A, Segment A9, Paper Handling, ADF and RADF Devices in the A9 segment are high speed printing devices and in some cases may not include a feeder as the intended purpose is not copying but rather high speed printing. Please clarify in this category if a feeder is a required specification. If so, we respectfully request this specification be modified allowing for a feeder to be optional.

See Question #153 above.

138. Attachment I A, B, C, D and F, Connectivity and Security, Power Protection Unit The type of surge protector required is unique to every customer and their facility. Please may the bidder submit a bid for a general cost of the surge protector with a generic description? This will allow the installing party and customer to select the appropriate surge protector at the stated contract cost.

See Question #8 above.

139. Page 28, section 3.4.7, Accessories Please confirm if the bidder should bid all associated accessories for each Segment product to allow for a broad catalog of product offerings for WSCA customers.

See Section 3.4.6; proposed devices must meet minimum requirements.
140. Attachment H Where should Attachment H go in tab 2?

Attachment H must be included in Part III – Confidential Financial Information, Tab 2.
141. Page 21, Section 3.2.6 This clause contradicts section 5.4.1. Can you please clarify if lease rates change Quarterly or are they to remain fixed?

See Question #38 above.

142. Page 21, Section 3.2.7 To be considered for award do all vendors need to provide short term rentals? Could you please clarify what procurement plans bidders are required to provide?

Yes. See Section 5.4.2 of the RFP.

143. Page 28, Section 3.4.3.1 Could you please explain what designates a machines primary function?

Primary function means something that is first in order, rank or importance.

144. Page 29, Section 3.4.10 This section state the uptime is 98%, However it is referenced in other areas (SLA) as 95% quarterly. Could you please clarify what the uptime is? Group C, E, F are generally swapped (mail-in) service not serviced by a technician. Could this requirement change for these categories since it is not industry standard?

See Revisions to RFP above. No.
145. Page 44, Section 5.4.3.1 Does all training need to be onsite or could it also be offered online?

This will be determined by the Customer.
146. Page 45, Section 5.4.7 At what level of discount should vendors notify the participating State contract officer? Does this make the contract a fixed price contract?

Awarded Vendor must notify Participating State Contract Administrators of all special promotion or pricing.  Pricing can never exceed the pricing listed in the Master Agreement.

147. Page 53, Section 11.3.2 Could you please clarify if vendors can report and pay the fee based upon the purchase price of the equipment, as opposed to the monthly lease price?

See Question #4 above.

148. Page 32, Section 3.5.6 We respectfully request that reporting and fee payments move to 45 days in lieu of 30 days?

See Revisions to RFP above.
149. Attachments I, B segment B3 We respectfully request that the range be changed for section B3 from 31-40 PPM to 30-41 PPM

See Revisions to RFP above.
150. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Which procurement options (Lease, Purchase, etc) should be made available to the WSCA-NASPO users via the eMarket Center on a hosted catalog or punch-out site?

All options should be made available

151. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Is Attachment D the template that a vendor would complete for a hosted catalog solution?

No, hosted catalogs have a preconfigured content management spreadsheet that will be provide upon enablement kickoff.

152. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Are there any timelines for implementing a hosted catalog, or punch-out solution?

Yes, 90 days.

153. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Are there any costs associated with working with Sciquest?

No.

154. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 How are products, configurations, and accessories organized on hosted catalog solutions?

Hosted catalogs have a preconfigured content management spreadsheet that will be provide upon enablement kickoff.

155. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Will we have the ability to link from the hosted catalog to Vendor’s informational websites?

Yes.

156. Page 63 Section 11.3.3 Does WSCA-NASPO currently have any Punch-out websites that support procuring equipment via lease terms?

No.

157. Page 20 Group C Wide format Devices. To provide customers with a broader range of products, we respectfully request that the speed be reduced in the low segment from 4+ to 2+

No.

158. Attachment G proposed staff resumes. Regarding references, Should the references be business or personel?

Business references are preferred.

159. Kodak Alaris only manufactures scanners.  Can we submit a bid just for scanners?

Yes.

160. Sections: 3.4.2.6 & 3.4.2.8 & 3.7.4: Some of the security requirements specified in the RFP may require customization based on the end user and their specific needs. Since full disclosure will need to be developed on user specific security, is it mandatory that the security requirements are included in standard pricing, or can security customization be priced separately?

Minimum requirements for security must be included in base price, additional security customization may be priced separately.
161. Sections 2.1 and 5.4.2: Please clarify the differences between the requested “Fair Market Value Lease”, the “Operational Lease” and the “Non-Cancelable Rental”.

The State chooses not to respond.
162. Section 2.1 & Attachment I: On the Leasing Rates Worksheets, is the column heading entitled "Non Cancelable Lease" the same as "Non Cancelable Rental" as defined on page 14 (Section 2.1) of the RFP?

See Revisions to RFP above.

163. Attachment I: There is no column for Short Term Rental on the Leasing Rates Worksheet. How would you like us to show the Short Term Rental pricing?

See Revisions to RFP above.  
164. Attachment D: Section 31, in the WSCA-NASPO Master Agreement Terms and Conditions specifies that, "Upon Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity, Contractor shall convey to Purchasing Entity title to the Product...". Is it your intention that title should pass up front (upon acceptance) for Fair Market Value and Operational Leases as well as the Rental offerings?

See Question #40 above.
165. Attachment G: “A resume must be completed for all proposed prime contractor staff and proposed subcontractor staff using the State format.” Is this mandatory?

Yes.
166. In the previous WSCA contract, segment definitions included B&W Production Copiers and Color Production Copiers. In the current WSCA Request for Proposal, those segment definitions have been eliminated. Is it the intent of the current RFP to remove production color and/or black& white equipment from the response?

No.
167. Section 3.2.8: This section states that vendors must provide pricing as “discount from Manufacturer Suggested Retail Price which must be a published figure with the Buyers Laboratory Inc. (BLI)”. Will other reference sources for confirming Manufacturer Suggested Retail Price be acceptable?

See Revisions to RFP above.
168. Section 4.1 Can an attachment be provided with a note in the table list of offices, locations, etc. or must they be listed in the table?

An attachment with a note in the table is acceptable.
169. Section 5.2. Define a "segment". Can a vendor respond to only one segment?

Yes.
170. Can the person submitting questions and the person authorized to negotiate the agreement can be 2 different people. This is from the table on page 2 of the RFQ.

Contact Person for Questions / Contract Negotiations is the Vendor’s contact person if the State/WSCA-NASPO has questions on their proposal submittal and/or for contract negotiations; this needs to be one person.

171. In the large format devices group, can you break out the black and white volume from the color volume?

See Revisions to RFP above.
172. Sub-contracting: Will the OEM's be allowed to utilize authorized resellers? If yes, will the resellers be able to accept purchase orders, ship and install equipment and invoice?

Yes; see Section 3.3.2.  See Questions #64 & 65 above.
173. Invoicing: is it required for the awarded vendor to invoice or will the reseller be allowed to invoice?

See Questions #64 & 65 above.
174. Vendor Questionnaire: Please advise if these may be completed by a customer for resellers that will be authorized or if they must be completed by a customer for the responding Vendor/OEM? Not all OEM's sell direct to the end user and may not be able to provide.

Reference Questionnaires need to be any business reference for the Vendor/OEM submitting a proposal.
175. Device Groupings, Group A, Copiers Black & White: there are 7 segments in this group, is it mandatory to offer a product in each segment to be responsive? IF no, what is the minimum number of segments that must be responded to?

No. One.
176. Device Groupings, Group B, Copiers Color: there are 7 segments in this group, is it mandatory to offer a product in each segment to be responsive? IF no, what is the minimum number of segments that must be responded to?

No. One.

177. Device Groupings, Group D, B&W & Color: The warranty requirement for this RFP is 4 hours on-site, would WSCA consider changing this for the printers to standard ship with equipment OEM warranty? This is typically Exchange or Onsite.

No, may be defined by the Participating State Contract Administrator.

178. Rental short term non-cancelable: Is it mandatory to offer rentals as part of this contract?

Yes, See Section 5.4.2 of the RFP.

179. Resumes, Page 41, 4.4: Please define who WSCA considers key personnel and requires a resume to be submitted with the response.

Key personnel is identified by the Vendor.
180. Group A Pricing: Is it mandatory for Group A copiers to have 3 hole punch and saddle stitch Finishing?

See Section 3.4.1 for minimum requirements.

181. Group B Pricing: Is it mandatory for Group A copiers to have 3 hole punch and saddle stitch Finishing?

See Section 3.4.1 for minimum requirements.

182. Group D Pricing: Printers typically do not have finishing capabilities, this is typical of MFP's or copiers. Request the finishing accessories be removed from the request.

See Section 3.4.3 for minimum requirements.
183. Attachment O, Model SLA: Will WSCA accept an offer with different/lower uptime? 1.2states 98% is required and 1.5 states 95%, which is correct?

See Question #56 above.
184. Attachment O: will WSCA consider alternate penalty for SLA's from what is listed in 1.4 of the attachment?

See Question #56 above.
185. With regards to service reporting, is it possible for participating resellers provide this reporting or is it mandatory for the vendor/OEM responding to provide the SLA service reports?

Awarded Vendor will be responsible for all reporting requirements.
186. Given the complexity of this RFP we request an extension to August 29th to have 4 full weeks to respond. In addition please extend the due date of the Reference Questionnaire to August 28th.

No.
187. Section 2.1: Would WSCA confirm that after acceptance of the Equipment through a delivery and acceptance certificate, that the underlying equipment cannot be rejected?

See Question #6 above.
188. Page 8, Definitions, Capital Lease: The last bullet of the definition of "Capital Lease", provides for lease renewal, but the third bullet states that ownership of the property will transfer to the customer at the end of the lease term. Would you please clarify?

See Revisions to RFP above.

189. Page 61, section 11.2.5. Is the next-to-last sentence (supremacy sentence) applicable only to Nevada transactions or does this apply to all Participating Addenda for various states?

See Question #37 above.
190. Page 31, Section 3.5.5.1: In order to mitigate the risk of non-payment, could WSCA more precisely define 'timely and accurate'?

See Question #19 above.
191. Section 3.5.5.2: Could you clarify the definition of the data set, and who is responsible for providing?

See Question #20 above.
192. Page 35, Software, Section 3.7.5.2. Can P.O.s be submitted with software only when there is existing equipment? There is a definition of embedded software on page 9. Does software have to be embedded or can it be financed as a stand-alone item?

See Question #22 above. Must be embedded, it cannot be financed as a stand-alone item.
193. Section 5.4.1 (1st sentence); will lease pricing include property taxes?

If applicable, property tax to be itemized separately.
194. Page 43, Section 5.4.2.3, Should the section include FMV as one of the leases that will attract a termination charge if cancelled? Also, the section is not clear if the termination charge is the remaining lease balance or if it is limited to 4 months service and supply base charges or 25% of remaining term, whichever is less. Could the language be modified to say, “All leases may be bought out to return to the Successful Vendors and devices returned to the owning lessor, although operational, fair market value, non-cancelable rentals and capital leases will be subject to a termination charge. With respect to leases, the termination charge may not exceed the balance of lease payments and with respect to service or maintenance agreements or obligations, the termination charge may not exceed more than four (4) months service and supply base charges or 25% of the remaining term whichever is less. No termination charges shall be applicable in the case of non-appropriation of funds.”

See Question #27 and 84 above.  See Section 5.4.2.11 of the RFP.
195. Section 6.1.1: Payment Terms, and Section11.2.5 Order of Precedence; do these apply to Nevada placements only or does this apply to all of the states that are participating?

See Questions #34 & 37 above.
196. Section 5.4.2.9. Is this applicable to accessories only or also to units? Is this flexibility or just equipment exchange without penalty or term extension?

See Question #28 above.
197. Attachment D, Master Agreement, page 3 of 20. Will WSCA provide a Notice of Assignment with the State of Nevada?

No.
198. Master Agreement, Section 7, Cancellation. This reads as if orders installed are not impacted by any cancellation. Please confirm.

See Question #39 above.

199. Master Agreement, Page 5 of 20, Defaults and Remedies: Are lessee defaults and remedies defined?

No.
200. Master Agreement, page 12 of 20, Language, “subject to approval by State Chief Procurement Officer.” How will we know this has been completed?

You will need to ask the WSCA-NASPO Cooperative Development Team about participating states or entities and they will provide you with the answer at that time.

201. Master Agreement, page 12 of 20, Governing Law, Should this governing law be the state where the lessee is located?

It should be the law of the state which executed the Participating Addendum under which the lease is being made (or the state in which the eligible entity is being authorized to use the Master Agreement through the Participating Addendum).

202. RFP Page 8, Definitions, Capital Lease. Please confirm that this is the same as a $1 buyout which will determine the type of lease document and rates.

Buyout amount is negotiated at the time of the lease.
203. Page 61, Section 11.2.5. Are the lease rates on the pricing sheets for Nevada only, or can vendors propose a different lease rate for each participating state?

See Question #37 above.
204. Page 14, Operational Lease. What is considered a "short term basis" and can we define the time period?

See Section 5.4.2 of the RFP.

205. Page 25, Section 3.3.11 Termination for Convenience. Are there any issues when negotiating with state level Participating Agreements where we may have to introduce additional documents?

This will be negotiated between the Awarded Vendor and Participating State or Entity.
206. Page 43, Section 5.4.2.10, Please clarify what is meant by reconciliation of overage charges?

The State chooses not to respond.
207. Attachment "D," Page 1 of Master Agreement, Will WSCA accept under financing terms the lease documents taking precedence?

No.
208. Attach "D", Page 7, regarding Force Majeure, would the following proposed language be acceptable? Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed to be in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance is prevented by reason of force majeure. The Contractor shall not be liable in damages for delay in shipment or failure to deliver when such delay or failure is the result of fire, flood, strike, act of God, which in the Purchasing Agent’s opinion are beyond the control of the Contractor.

No.

209. Regarding attachment "G "Proposed Staff Resumes, Which individuals are required to provide this information?

See Section 4.4 of the RFP.
210. RFP Page 22. Section 3.3.3, Can you please list the full requirements of the web site?

The State chooses not to respond.

211. Attachment D. Page 17 Section 36, Can the eMarket center be used in lieu of building a web site?

No.
212. Section 5.4.3.5. Eleven by seventeen inch impressions use much more toner, and are therefore significantly more expensive to produce than letter sized impressions, particularly color. We respectfully request that the language be modified to allow 11 x 17 impressions to count as two “clicks.”

See Question #31 above.

213. Page 41, Section.5.2. The RFP allows vendors to bid multiple devices in each category. Is it WSCA’s preference that vendors bid multiple devices, or a single device, in a single category? Additionally, the PPM range in Segments A4 and B4 is quite large; how will WSCA be evaluating machines of different PPM’s from different manufacturers? Also, if the vendor proposes multiple machines within one segment may those machines be at different discounts from MSRP?

WSCA does not have a preference.  State chooses not to answer.  Yes.

214. Could WSCA provide the state specific Additional Terms and Conditions?

State specific terms and conditions will be provided by the Participating State if/when the State chooses to sign a Participating Addendum with an awarded vendor.
215. Section 9. Could the information be submitted on an appropriately labeled USB drive rather than a CD?

Yes, as long as the USB drive is appropriately labeled and easily identifiable.

216. Section 3.2.3 indicates that pricing must be provided as a cost per impression. Will a final contract provide procuring entities the ability to simply purchase or lease products standalone with or without services? Or is this simply a per impression services contract?

Contract will provide to simply purchase a standalone device with or without services.  Leases will require service and maintenance on the device.
217. Section 3.2.7 indicates that Vendors are requested to offer and provide rentals. If a Vendor only provides leasing options will that impact a Vendor ability to obtain an award?

Yes; see Question #142 above.
218. Section 3.3.1, indicates that a Vendor can offer additional devices at the same or deeper discount. If a Vendor would like to offer all products available, would the Vendor provide those additional device offerings in a price list or simply note that in the response?

See Question #159 above.

219. Section 6.1, Payment. If a Vendor accepts payment terms based on the State Prompt Payment act or as mutually agreed under each Participating Addendum, would that be acceptable or would that be considered an exception?

No, this would be mutually agreed upon when signing PA.
220. Section 1.9 indicates administrative fees are due no later than 60 days following each quarter end. Section 3.5.6.2 indicates administrative fees are due within 30 days of the closing reporting period. Are administrative fees due 30 days or 60 following each quarter end or the last day of the month or 2 months following the end of the quarter? For example: 2Q15 period ending 6/30/2015 – is the administrative fee due: 7/30/15 (literally represents 30 days following the reporting period)? or 7/31/15 (last day of the month following the reporting period)? or 8/29/15 (literally represents 60 days following the reporting period)? or 8/31/15 (represents 2 months following the reporting period)?

See Question #5 above.
221. Section 3.5.6.1 indicates reporting is due within 30 days of the closing of a reporting period, as requested. Does that imply literally 30 days after reporting period or the last day of the month following the reporting period? For example: 2Q15 period ending 6/30/2015 – is the report due: 7/30/15 (literally represents 30 days following the reporting period)? or 7/31/15 (last day of the month following the reporting period)?

Literally 30 days.
222. On the Vendor Information Sheet, may Vendor list 2 separate contacts in the section that asks for a contact for questions/ contact for contract negotiations?

No.

223. Section 3.1 Group E, Digital Duplicator: If Vendor does not respond to Group E, may Vendor still be considered for an award? To our knowledge, there are very few Vendors still offering this technology that would be able to bid this group as well as other groups (A, B, C, F) and segments (like x3-x9).

Vendor must respond to at least one segment within a Group in order to be considered for an award.
224. Section 3.2.3 – Can Vendors propose a more cost effective pricing model than cost-per-impression?

Yes, with an exception noted in Attachment J.
225. Section 3.2.8: Although Vendor’s MSRP is published with BLI, Vendor typically discounts off of List price (not MSRP). If Vendor’s List price is not published with BLI, may Vendor propose a discount off List price?

See Revisions to RFP above.
226. Section 3.2.8: If the Manufacturer Suggested Retail Price (MSRP) is not provided by BLI, would the manufacture’s publicly stated MSRP value suffice?

See Revisions to RFP above.
227. Section 3.4.1.8: 11x17 paper size capacity is required; however less than 5% of customers print and copy on paper sizes 11x17. Would a consideration be included for optional paper size capacities within groups A and B that do not handle 11x17 size paper?

See Question #72 above.

228. Section 3.5.12.3 does not indicate whether the 30 day timeframe is 30 calendar days or 30 business days. Please clarify.

Calendar days.

229. Section 4.4 Vendor Staff Resumes: Based on the number of States Participating, an awarded Vendor may have over 20 or more States Participating with a huge number of staff in a given State supporting agencies throughout a given State and responsible for the performance of the contract. With that in mind what staff resumes would be requested for this RFP response?

Key Personnel responsible for the Master Agreement.
230. Section 5.4.2.5 “Cost-per-Copy programs may be allowed at Customers request. Cost-per-Copy is not required to be offered by Awarded Vendors and will not be evaluated in Vendor’s response.” however the pricing schedules call for cost per copy. The RFP itself calls for a cost per impression. Is there a differentiation between Cost-per-Copy versus cost-per-impression by group (A-C have cost per copy tabs; D, E and F do not).

See Revisions to RFP above.
231. Section 9.1.9 states that a Vendor’s response may be deemed non-responsive if Vendor changes any material RFP language. Does this mean that noting a clarification or exception to a material provision of the RFP will make the response non-responsive?

All clarifications, assumptions or exceptions must be noted only on Attachments B or J of the RFP.
232. Section 9.2.3.4.F, Request for copies of applicable certifications and/or licenses: Please clarify what certifications and licenses are considered applicable to this RFP. For example, does this refer to technical certifications related to the products, or certifications related to the Vendor?

Any certifications and/or licenses the Vendor feels is applicable to their proposal.
233. Section 9.3.3.2 Part IB – does this binder include only Vendor’s confidential information (if any)? If not, please clarify the content for this binder.

Yes, if any.
234. Section 9.4.3.2 Tab II cost proposal – does “Vendor’s response for the cost proposal” refer to the Pricing Schedule spreadsheets?

Yes.
235. Section 9.6.4.1.B, Section 9.6.4.2.B and Section 9.6.4.3.D - May the CDs be packaged in protective sleeves rather than cases?

Yes.
236. Section 9.6.4.3.C states that electronic files must be saved in PDF on the public records CD. What file format (s) should be used for the Master CD and the Confidential Financial CD?

PDF.
237. Section 11.3.4 instructs Vendors to submit a statement that they understand they may be required to negotiate a state’s additional terms and conditions when executing a Participating Addendum. Where should Vendors include this statement?

In Part IA – Technical Proposal, referencing the section.

238. For group "C" devices: Are the wide-format devices intended for technical drawings or marketing images?

The State chooses not to respond.
239. For group “C” devices: Is there consideration as a unique segment, or as an additional class under Group C – “Wide Format Devices” - to include “large” format printers and or plotters with a width size of 24-69 inches?

The State chooses not to respond.
240. For group “D” devices: Can the vendor include multiple devices within each segment (D1, D2, D3) for B&W and color?

Yes.
241. For group “D” devices: If multiple devices are allowed to be included within each segment, can they include both single function and multifunction B&W and color devices?

Yes.
242. Group F devices: Are the speeds listed actually intended to be PPM (pages per minute) or IPM (images per minute)?

See Revisions to RFP above.

243. Group D – Pricing Schedule: Refers to “Printers (B&W and Color) “but only has three subgroups D1, D2 and D3. Are vendors asked to provide both a B&W device and a color device for each PPM category or just a single color device that prints within that PPM range? If only color devices are desired are there no groups dedicated to B/W only Printers?

See Revisions to RFP above.

244. Group D – Pricing Schedule: No tab for vendors to provide cost per copy pricing. Will one be provided? Are vendors to provide a tab for supplies pricing.

See Revisions to RFP above.

245. Can WSCA provide anticipated page volumes by: group, device, and quarter, annual and by device lifetime?

This information is not available.
246. Must Vendor propose a product in each segment to be considered for award of a group? 

No.

247. Must Vendor propose every group in order to be considered for award?

No.

248. 2.1 Capital Lease States that Ownership of the property will is transferred to the customer at the end of the lease term. It also states that such leases shall be subject to monthly payment reduction by the Awarded Vendor upon renewal. Q: Please clarify; if the Ownership is transferred upon completion of the lease term, how is a Capital Lease subject to renewal?

See Revisions to RFP above.

249. 3.1 The following Segments shall be utilized to group the various speeds of copiers within Groups A, B, C, D and E. Q: Segment A begins with A3 at 30-39 pages per minute. The Segment A2 with units at 20-29 pages per minute have not been included in this RFP, would you consider adding these back in? Without a broader product line to include the 20 – 29 ppm units, the WSCA contract may not have the appeal of other contracts which offer a wider variety of speed bands. Will there be a solution available for lower speed units (20 – 29 ppm)?

See Revisions to RFP above.

250. 3.2.4 Manufacturer may only submit one response and may not submit multiple responses for any additional brand names. Q: If a manufacturer markets its products through multiple brand names even though they submitted only one proposal, will they be allowed to market the contract through their other brand names?

See Question #69 above.

251. 3.3.1 Awarded Vendors may additional devices and software within each awarded grouping so long as the device meets or exceeds the requirements of the of the RFP. Q: Interactive White Boards are not part of this solicitation but they are considered an input/output device that connects to the MFP product. Can they be listed as an additional device where applicable?

No, see Section 1.5 of the RFP.
252. 3.3.2 During the Master Agreement period, Participating State Contract Administrator may remove a dealer from the list of those designated to service the Master Agreement at any time without further explanation or process Q: In some secondary and tertiary markets a manufacturer may only have a single servicing dealer to provide coverage. If a dealer is arbitrarily removed from the contract this could create serious issues in coverage. Are there reasons that must be stated for the removal? Is there an appeal process available for the dealer? Could WSCA put some stipulations in the contract requiring the State to contact the Manufacturer if issues arise and allow for remedy?

No to all questions.

253. Attachment I – Cost Schedule Q: Group B Color Copiers - it is customary for manufacturers to charge a CPC for Color Copies and a CPC for Black & White copies. On the CPC tab for Group B it looks like you are asking for a blended rate for color and Black and White. Is this correct? Will you accept separate CPC charges for Color & B/W copies? Q: Can WSCA provide instruction or clarity on how you want the pricing sheets completed as these are a different format than the prior RFP 1715?

See Revisions to RFP above.
254. 11.3.2 WSCA-NASPO Administrative Fees Q: In addition to paying admin fees on hardware sales is the manufacturer required to pay admin fees on maintenance and supply revenues collected?

Yes.

255. 3.7.5- Would WSCA consider adding the capability for an ordering agency to obtain software solutions or professional services directly from the local installing dealer of the equipment on an open-market basis if related to an equipment order that results from this contract if permitted and approved by the State Participating Addendum?

No.
256. Section 5.4.2.5 (C.) indicates that no minimum charges may apply when Cost-Per-Copy plans are offered however the industry standard is that a commitment of minimum number of monthly images/prints/copies are needed to offer products and services in this manner. Please clarify the requirement described by this section.

See Revisions to RFP above.

257. Section 5.4.3.5 requires that 11” x 17” impressions must be counted as one impression may result in higher overall rates for service and supplies cost per page although generally agency usage of this size of paper is minimal (about 17% of paper purchased). Please consider revision of this section to allow for a single impression count for letter and legal sized paper while ledger would count as two. Overall, this allows vendors to offer lower rates for the majority (83% of paper purchased) of customer agency impressions which are letter and legal size.

See Question #31 above.
258. 3.5.4.2- Can we offer an hourly charge for “after hours” service, rather than a monthly rate to include “after hours” service?

Yes.
259. How many awardees are anticipated?

Number of awardees will be determined in the best interest of WSCA-NASPO.
260. How will you be evaluating and eliminating bidders from consideration?

See Section 10 of the RFP.
261. Some States have vastly different cost structures, what provisions are being made to allow aggressive pricing nationwide but also allow the contract to be used in states such as Alaska?

This would be addressed in a Participating Addendum.
262. (Section 3.1) Does the State plan to award by Group (i.e. Group A, Group B,…) or by Segment (i.e. Segment A3, Segment A4,…)?

Awards will be made by Group (i.e. Group A, Group B…).
263. (Section 3.1)In order to receive more responses for Group F Scanners, would the State be willing to allow 3rd-party products?

No.
264. (Section 3.2.2) As all customers won’t need all services, would the State be willing to make installation, training, MADC as options instead of included in the price in order to provide a lower price?

No.
265. (Section 3.2.2) Would the State consider replacement of 3.2.2 with, "Devices must be manufactured or private labeled by the Vendor. Other devices may be allowed for production (90+ pages per minute), wide format, duplicators, and scanner configurations."?

No.

266. Section 3.2.8 requires the discount to be based upon MSRP published with BLI. For many vendors, BLI publishes "Web rates" versus MSRP. To allow for an apples-to-apples comparison, would the state allow the use of a manufacturer’s publicly available site for MSRP if their list price with BLI is not MSRP?

See Revisions to RFP above. 
267. (Section 3.4) BLI recommends duplex as a standard requirement of all devices for green initiatives and sustainability. Would the State consider making duplex a requirement for all segments in Group A, B, C, and D?

No.
268. (Section 3.4.1.8) Would the State consider making 11" x 17" an optional feature rather than a requirement for groups A and B in order to give lower cost options?

See Question #72 above.

269. (Section 3.5.7) In order to lower costs, would the State consider making the 1-hour onsite training optional for groups D, E, and F? (Section 3.5.7) This would also decrease the cost for multiple units at the same location, as the customer won’t pay for training for each unit.

No, Awarded Vendor would offer a reduced rate if Customer chooses not to include 1-hour onsite training.
270. (Section 3.5.12.1) In an effort to lower the costs, for Groups C, D, E and F, would you be willing to accept an Urban response time as one working day? A 4-hour response could be added as an optional service for those customers who desire it.

No.
271. (Section 3.5.12.1) Under Service Zone (Section 3.5.12.1), please provide a list of locations that meet the definition of "Metropolitan Statistical Area."

The State chooses not to respond.
272. (Section 4.4 / Attachment G) Would the State be willing to accept human resource approved biographies (which contain all details with the exception of references) instead of the Proposed Staff Resume provided in Attachment G?

No, all vendors must submit as instructed in the RFP.
273. (Section 5.4.2) Would the State allow purchase as a financial vehicle option? This would allow WSCA/NASPO customers to retain the option to purchase?

Yes.
274. (Attachment I) In order to ensure consistent responses from Vendors on Group D, would the State please revise the worksheet to allow for a monochrome device and a color device for each segment?

See Revisions to RFP above.
ALL ELSE REMAINS THE SAME FOR RFP 3091.
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	This document must be submitted in the “State Documents” section/tab of vendors’ technical proposal.


Amendment 2
RFP No. 3091
Page 1 of 70

_1497260609.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group C - Wide Format Devices 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				Low
B&W
(500-10,000)		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)		Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)		High
B&W
(50,0001+)		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Roll Width

		Additional Roll Width (optional)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White /Color)



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group C - Wide Format Devices 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				Low
B&W
(500-10,000)		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)		Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)		High
B&W
(50,0001+)		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group C - Wide Format Devices 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				Low
B&W
(500-10,000)		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)				Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)				High
B&W
(50,0001+)		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		Medium
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00				$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Console		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Roll Paper Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Copy/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Medium
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00				$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Console		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Roll Paper Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Copy/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group C - Wide Format Devices
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of B&W Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all B&W copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		Low
B&W
(500-10,000)								0

		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)								0

		Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)								0

		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)								0

		High
B&W
(50,0001+)								0

		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)
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_1497260615.xls
List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91-119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)		B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)		B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)		B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Internal / Wing Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Basic Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Post Process Insertion

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91-119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)		B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)		B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)		B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91 - 119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91 - 119)				B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)				B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)				B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group B - Copiers Color



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin

		Difference in rate for fixed rates



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B6
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B7
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B9
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capacity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment B - Copiers Color



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group B - Production Copiers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of Color Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all Color copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		B6
B&W
(91-119)								0

		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)								0

		B7
B&W
(120-139)								0

		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)								0

		B8
B&W
(140-159)								0

		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)								0

		B9
B&W
(160+)								0

		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment B - Copiers Color




_1497260617.xls
List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group D - Printers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				D1
B&W
(Up-20)		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)		D2
B&W
(21-40)		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)		D3
B&W
(41-60)		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Facsimile Options

		Facsimile Kit

		Dual Line Option

		Additional Fax Memory

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Warranty

		Standard Warranty

		Extended Option Warranty (please describe here)

		Service & Supplies

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group D - Printers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				D1
B&W
(Up-20)		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)		D2
B&W
(21-40)		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)		D3
B&W
(41-60)		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin

		Difference in rate for fixed rates



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		D2
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Bypass Tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						500+ sheet paper tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						USB 2.0 Connectivity		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Envelope Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						256 RAM memory		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segement D - Printers



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group D - Printers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of Color Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all Color copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		D1
B&W
(Up-20)								0

		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)								0

		D2
B&W
(21-40)								0

		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)								0

		D3
B&W
(41-60)								0

		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)								0






_1497260619.xls
List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group F - Scanners
SEGMENTS

				F0
(30-49)		F1
(50-59)		F2
(60-69)		F3
(70-79)		F4
(80-89)		F5
(90+)

		Make

		Model

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group F - Scanners
SEGMENTS

				F0
(30-49)		F1
(50-59)		F2
(60-69)		F3
(70-79)		F4
(80-89)		F5
(90+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin

		Difference in rate for fixed rates



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		F3				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Multifeed detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Scanning Software		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Double-sided scanning feature		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						11" X 17" scanning cabilities		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Auto Color Detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		F5				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Multifeed detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Scanning Software		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Double-sided scanning feature		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						11" X 17" scanning cabilities		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Auto Color Detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment F - Scanners

default:




_1497260620.pdf
The parties agree that the following provisions (Participating Addendum) shall apply to any
action, purchase or purchase order issued by the State of Connecticut or any of its
participating entities.

Definitions: The following definitions apply to this Participating Addendum

a)

b)

d)

Claims: All actions, suits, claims, demands, investigations and proceedings of any kind,
open, pending or threatened, whether mature, unmatured, contingent, known or unknown,
at law or in equity, in any forum.

Confidential Information: Any name, number or other information that may be used,
alone or in conjunction with any other information, to identify a specific individual
including, but not limited to, such individual's name, date of birth, mother's maiden name,
motor vehicle operator's license number, Social Security number, employee identification
number, employer or taxpayer identification number, alien registration number,
government passport number, health insurance identification number, demand deposit
account number, savings account number, credit card number, debit card number or
unique biometric data such as fingerprint, voice print, retina or iris image, or other unique
physical representation. Without limiting the foregoing, Confidential Information shall
also include any information that the Department classifies as “confidential” or
“restricted.” Confidential Information shall not include information that may be lawfully
obtained from publicly available sources or from federal, state, or local government
records which are lawfully made available to the general public.

Confidential Information Breach: This shall mean, generally, an instance where an
unauthorized person or entity accesses Confidential Information in any manner, including
but not limited to the following occurrences: (1) any Confidential Information that is not
encrypted or protected is misplaced, lost, stolen or in any way compromised; (2)one or
more third parties have had access to or taken control or possession of any Confidential
Information that is not encrypted or protected without prior written authorization from the
State; (3) the unauthorized acquisition of encrypted or protected Confidential
Information together with the confidential process or key that is capable of compromising
the integrity of the Confidential Information; or (4) if there is a substantial risk of
identity theft or fraud to the client, the Contractor, the Department or State.

Contract: 3091, Copiers, Printers & Related Devices 14-19 (NV)and this participating
addendum

Contractor Parties: A Contractor’s members, directors, officers, shareholders, partners,
managers, principal officers, representatives, agents, servants, consultants, employees or
any one of them or any other person or entity with whom the Contractor is in privity of





oral or written contract and the Contractor intends for such other person or entity to
Perform under the Contract in any capacity.

Whistleblowing. This Contract may be subject to the provisions of Section 4-61dd of the
Connecticut General Statutes. In accordance with this statute, if an officer, employee or
appointing authority of the Contractor takes or threatens to take any personnel action against any
employee of the Contractor in retaliation for such employee's disclosure of information to any
employee of the contracting state or quasi-public agency or the Auditors of Public Accounts or
the Attorney General under the provisions of subsection (a) of such statute, the Contractor shall
be liable for a civil penalty of not more than five thousand dollars for each offense, up to a
maximum of twenty per cent of the value of this Contract. Each violation shall be a separate and
distinct offense and in the case of a continuing violation, each calendar day's continuance of the
violation shall be deemed to be a separate and distinct offense. The State may request that the
Attorney General bring a civil action in the Superior Court for the Judicial District of Hartford to
seek imposition and recovery of such civil penalty. In accordance with subsection (f) of such
statute, each large state contractor, as defined in the statute, shall post a notice of the provisions
of the statute relating to large state contractors in a conspicuous place which is readily available
for viewing by the employees of the Contractor.

Forum and Choice of Law. The parties deem the Contract to have been made in the City of
Hartford, State of Connecticut. Both parties agree that it is fair and reasonable for the validity
and construction of the Contract to be, and it shall be, governed by the laws and court decisions
of the State of Connecticut, without giving effect to its principles of conflicts of laws. To the
extent that any immunities provided by Federal law or the laws of the State of Connecticut do
not bar an action against the State, and to the extent that these courts are courts of competent
jurisdiction, for the purpose of venue, the complaint shall be made returnable to the Judicial
District of Hartford only or shall be brought in the United States District Court for the District of
Connecticut only, and shall not be transferred to any other court, provided, however, that nothing
here constitutes a waiver or compromise of the sovereign immunity of the State of Connecticut.
The Contractor waives any objection which it may now have or will have to the laying of venue
of any Claims in any forum and further irrevocably submits to such jurisdiction in any suit,
action or proceeding.

Sovereign Immunity. The parties acknowledge and agree that nothing in the solicitation or the
Contract shall be construed as a modification, compromise or waiver by the State of any rights or
defenses of any immunities provided by Federal law or the laws of the State of Connecticut to
the State or any of its officers and employees, which they may have had, now have or will have
with respect to all matters arising out of the Contract. To the extent that this section conflicts
with any other section, this section shall govern.






Summary of State Ethics Laws. Pursuant to the requirements of section 1-101qq of the
Connecticut General Statutes, the summary of State ethics laws developed by the State Ethics
Commission pursuant to section 1-81b of the Connecticut General Statutes is incorporated by
reference into and made a part of the Contract as if the summary had been fully set forth in the
Contract.

Campaign Contribution Restriction. For all State contracts, defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. §9-
612(g)(1) as having a value in a calendar year of $50,000 or more, or a combination or series of
such agreements or contracts having a value of $100,000 or more, the authorized signatory to
this Contract expressly acknowledges receipt of the State Elections Enforcement Commission’s
notice advising state contractors of state campaign contribution and solicitation prohibitions, and
will inform its principals of the contents of the notice, as set forth in "Notice to Executive Branch
State Contractors and Prospective State Contractors of Campaign Contribution and Solicitation
Limitations,” attached to this Participating Addendum.

Executive Orders. This Contract is subject to the provisions of Executive Order No. Three of
Governor Thomas J. Meskill, promulgated June 16, 1971, concerning labor employment
practices, Executive Order No. Seventeen of Governor Thomas J. Meskill, promulgated February
15, 1973, concerning the listing of employment openings and Executive Order No. Sixteen of
Governor John G. Rowland promulgated August 4, 1999, concerning violence in the workplace,
all of which are incorporated into and are made a part of the Contract as if they had been fully set
forth in it. The Contract may also be subject to the applicable parts of Executive Order No. 7C
of Governor M. Jodi Rell, promulgated July 13, 2006, concerning contracting reforms and
Executive Order No. 14 of Governor M. Jodi Rell, promulgated April 17, 2006, concerning
procurement of cleaning products and services, in accordance with their respective terms and
conditions. If Executive Orders 7C and 14 are applicable, they are deemed to be incorporated
into and are made a part of the Contract as if they had been fully set forth in it. At the
Contractor’s request, the Department shall provide a copy of these orders to the Contractor.

Nondiscrimination.

(@) For purposes of this Section, the following terms are defined as follows:

I. "Commission"” means the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities;
ii. "Contract” and “contract” include any extension or modification of the Contract or

contract;

iii. "Contractor” and “contractor” include any successors or assigns of the Contractor or
contractor;

iv. "Gender identity or expression” means a person's gender-related identity,

appearance or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance or
behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the person's physiology
or assigned sex at birth, which gender-related identity can be shown by providing
evidence including, but not limited to, medical history, care or treatment of the
gender-related identity, consistent and uniform assertion of the gender-related
identity or any other evidence that the gender-related identity is sincerely held, part
of a person’s core identity or not being asserted for an improper purpose;

V. “good faith™ means that degree of diligence which a reasonable person would
exercise in the performance of legal duties and obligations;
Vi. "good faith efforts” shall include, but not be limited to, those reasonable initial

efforts necessary to comply with statutory or regulatory requirements and additional





or substituted efforts when it is determined that such initial efforts will not be
sufficient to comply with such requirements;

vii. "marital status" means being single, married as recognized by the state of
Connecticut, widowed, separated or divorced,;
viii. "mental disability" means one or more mental disorders, as defined in the most

recent edition of the American Psychiatric Association's "Diagnostic and Statistical
Manual of Mental Disorders", or a record of or regarding a person as having one or
more such disorders;

IX. "minority business enterprise™ means any small contractor or supplier of materials
fifty-one percent or more of the capital stock, if any, or assets of which is owned by
a person or persons: (1) who are active in the daily affairs of the enterprise, (2) who
have the power to direct the management and policies of the enterprise, and (3) who
are members of a minority, as such term is defined in subsection (a) of Connecticut
General Statutes § 32-9n; and

X. "public works contract” means any agreement between any individual, firm or
corporation and the State or any political subdivision of the State other than a
municipality for construction, rehabilitation, conversion, extension, demolition or
repair of a public building, highway or other changes or improvements in real
property, or which is financed in whole or in part by the State, including, but not
limited to, matching expenditures, grants, loans, insurance or guarantees.

For purposes of this Section, the terms "Contract™ and “contract” do not include a contract
where each contractor is (1) a political subdivision of the state, including, but not limited
to, a municipality, (2) a quasi-public agency, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 1-120,
(3) any other state, including but not limited to any federally recognized Indian tribal
governments, as defined in Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 1-267, (4) the federal government, (5)
a foreign government, or (6) an agency of a subdivision, agency, state or government
described in the immediately preceding enumerated items (1), (2), (3), (4) or (5).

(b) (1) The Contractor agrees and warrants that in the performance of the Contract such
Contractor will not discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons
on the grounds of race, color, religious creed, age, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sex,
gender identity or expression, mental retardation, mental disability or physical disability,
including, but not limited to, blindness, unless it is shown by such Contractor that such disability
prevents performance of the work involved, in any manner prohibited by the laws of the United
States or of the State of Connecticut; and the Contractor further agrees to take affirmative action
to insure that applicants with job-related qualifications are employed and that employees are
treated when employed without regard to their race, color, religious creed, age, marital status,
national origin, ancestry, sex, gender identity or expression, mental retardation, mental disability
or physical disability, including, but not limited to, blindness, unless it is shown by the
Contractor that such disability prevents performance of the work involved; (2) the Contractor
agrees, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, to state that it is an "affirmative action-equal opportunity employer™ in accordance
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with regulations adopted by the Commission; (3) the Contractor agrees to provide each labor
union or representative of workers with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining
Agreement or other contract or understanding and each vendor with which the Contractor has a
contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Commission, advising the labor union
or workers’ representative of the Contractor's commitments under this section and to post copies
of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment;

(4) the Contractor agrees to comply with each provision of this Section and Connecticut General
Statutes 88 46a-68e and 46a-68f and with each regulation or relevant order issued by said
Commission pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes 88 46a-56, 46a-68e and 46a-68f; and

(5) the Contractor agrees to provide the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities with
such information requested by the Commission, and permit access to pertinent books, records
and accounts, concerning the employment practices and procedures of the Contractor as relate to
the provisions of this Section and Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-56. If the contract is a
public works contract, the Contractor agrees and warrants that he will make good faith efforts to
employ minority business enterprises as subcontractors and suppliers of materials on such public
works projects.

(c) Determination of the Contractor's good faith efforts shall include, but shall not be limited
to, the following factors: The Contractor's employment and subcontracting policies,
patterns and practices; affirmative advertising, recruitment and training; technical
assistance activities and such other reasonable activities or efforts as the Commission may
prescribe that are designed to ensure the participation of minority business enterprises in
public works projects.

(d) The Contractor shall develop and maintain adequate documentation, in a manner
prescribed by the Commission, of its good faith efforts.

(e) The Contractor shall include the provisions of subsection (b) of this Section in every
subcontract or purchase order entered into in order to fulfill any obligation of a contract
with the State and such provisions shall be binding on a subcontractor, vendor or
manufacturer unless exempted by regulations or orders of the Commission. The Contractor
shall take such action with respect to any such subcontract or purchase order as the
Commission may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes 846a-56; provided if such
Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or
vendor as a result of such direction by the Commission, the Contractor may request the
State of Connecticut to enter into any such litigation or negotiation prior thereto to protect
the interests of the State and the State may so enter.





(f) The Contractor agrees to comply with the regulations referred to in this Section as they
exist on the date of this Contract and as they may be adopted or amended from time to time
during the term of this Contract and any amendments thereto.

(@) (1) The Contractor agrees and warrants that in the performance of the Contract such
Contractor will not discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of
persons on the grounds of sexual orientation, in any manner prohibited by the laws of the
United States or the State of Connecticut, and that employees are treated when employed
without regard to their sexual orientation; (2) the Contractor agrees to provide each labor
union or representative of workers with which such Contractor has a collective bargaining
Agreement or other contract or understanding and each vendor with which such Contractor
has a contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Commission on Human
Rights and Opportunities advising the labor union or workers' representative of the
Contractor's commitments under this section, and to post copies of the notice in
conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment; (3) the
Contractor agrees to comply with each provision of this section and with each regulation or
relevant order issued by said Commission pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes 8§ 46a-
56; and (4) the Contractor agrees to provide the Commission on Human Rights and
Opportunities with such information requested by the Commission, and permit access to
pertinent books, records and accounts, concerning the employment practices and
procedures of the Contractor which relate to the provisions of this Section and Connecticut
General Statutes § 46a-56.

() The Contractor shall include the provisions of the foregoing paragraph in every subcontract
or purchase order entered into in order to fulfill any obligation of a contract with the State
and such provisions shall be binding on a subcontractor, vendor or manufacturer unless
exempted by regulations or orders of the Commission. The Contractor shall take such
action with respect to any such subcontract or purchase order as the Commission may
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance in
accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-56; provided, if such Contractor
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a
result of such direction by the Commission, the Contractor may request the State of
Connecticut to enter into any such litigation or negotiation prior thereto to protect the
interests of the State and the State may so enter.

Indemnification.

(@) The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State and its officers,
representatives, agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns from and against any
and all (1) Claims arising, directly or indirectly, in connection with the Contract, including
the acts of commission or omission (collectively, the "Acts™) of the Contractor or Contractor
Parties; and (2) liabilities, damages, losses, costs and expenses, including but not limited to,
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attorneys' and other professionals' fees, arising, directly or indirectly, in connection with
Claims, Acts or the Contract. The Contractor shall use counsel reasonably acceptable to the
State in carrying out its obligations under this section. The Contractor’s obligations under
this section to indemnify, defend and hold harmless against Claims includes Claims
concerning confidentiality of any part of or all of the Contractor’s bid, proposal or any
Records, any intellectual property rights, other proprietary rights of any person or entity,
copyrighted or uncopyrighted compositions, secret processes, patented or unpatented
inventions, articles or appliances furnished or used in the performance.

(b)The Contractor shall not be responsible for indemnifying or holding the State harmless from
any liability arising due to the negligence of the State or any other person or entity acting
under the direct control or supervision of the State.

(c) The Contractor shall reimburse the State for any and all damages to the real or personal
property of the State caused by the Acts of the Contractor or any Contractor Parties. The
State shall give the Contractor reasonable notice of any such Claims.

(d)The Contractor’s duties under this section shall remain fully in effect and binding in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract, without being lessened or
compromised in any way, even where the Contractor is alleged or is found to have merely
contributed in part to the Acts giving rise to the Claims and/or where the State is alleged or is
found to have contributed to the Acts giving rise to the Claims.

(e) The Contractor shall carry and maintain at all times during the term of the Contract, and
during the time that any provisions survive the term of the Contract, sufficient general
liability insurance to satisfy its obligations under this Contract. The Contractor shall name
the State as an additional insured on the policy and shall provide a copy of the policy to the
Agency prior to the effective date of the Contract. The Contractor shall not begin
performance until the delivery of the policy to the Agency. The Agency shall be entitled to
recover under the insurance policy even if a body of competent jurisdiction determines that
the Agency or the State is contributorily negligent.

(F) The rights provided in this section for the benefit of the State shall encompass the recovery of
attorneys’ and other professionals’ fees expended in pursuing a Claim against a third party.

(9) This section shall survive the Termination of the Contract and shall not be limited by reason
of any insurance coverage.

Tangible Personal Property.

(@) The Contractor on its behalf and on behalf of its Affiliates, as defined below, shall comply with
the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. §12-411b, as follows:

(1) For the term of the Contract, the Contractor and its Affiliates shall collect and remit to the
State of Connecticut, Department of Revenue Services, any Connecticut use tax due under the
provisions of Chapter 219 of the Connecticut General Statutes for items of tangible personal
property sold by the Contractor or by any of its Affiliates in the same manner as if the

7





Contractor and such Affiliates were engaged in the business of selling tangible personal
property for use in Connecticut and had sufficient nexus under the provisions of Chapter 219
to be required to collect Connecticut use tax;

(2) A customer’s payment of a use tax to the Contractor or its Affiliates relieves the customer of
liability for the use tax;

(3) The Contractor and its Affiliates shall remit all use taxes they collect from customers on or
before the due date specified in the Contract, which may not be later than the last day of the
month next succeeding the end of a calendar quarter or other tax collection period during
which the tax was collected,;

(4) The Contractor and its Affiliates are not liable for use tax billed by them but not paid to them
by a customer; and

(5) Any Contractor or Affiliate who fails to remit use taxes collected on behalf of its customers by
the due date specified in the Contract shall be subject to the interest and penalties provided for
persons required to collect sales tax under chapter 219 of the general statutes.

(b) For purposes of this section of the Contract, the word “Affiliate” means any person, as
defined in section 12-1 of the general statutes, that controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with another person. A person controls another person if the person owns,
directly or indirectly, more than ten per cent of the voting securities of the other person. The
word “voting security” means a security that confers upon the holder the right to vote for the
election of members of the board of directors or similar governing body of the business, or
that is convertible into, or entitles the holder to receive, upon its exercise, a security that
confers such a right to vote. “Voting security” includes a general partnership interest.

(c) The Contractor represents and warrants that each of its Affiliates has vested in the Contractor
plenary authority to so bind the Affiliates in any agreement with the State of Connecticut.
The Contractor on its own behalf and on behalf of its Affiliates shall also provide, no later
than 30 days after receiving a request by the State’s contracting authority, such information
as the State may require to ensure, in the State’s sole determination, compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 219 of the Connecticut General Statutes, including, but not limited to,
§12-411b.

Audit and Inspection of Plants, Places of Business and Records.

(@) The State and its agents, including, but not limited to, the Connecticut Auditors of Public
Accounts, Attorney General and State’s Attorney and their respective agents, may, at
reasonable hours, inspect and examine all of the parts of the Contractor’s and Contractor
Parties’ plants and places of business which, in any way, are related to, or involved in, the
performance of this Contract.

(b) The Contractor shall maintain, and shall require each of the Contractor Parties to
maintain, accurate and complete Records. The Contractor shall make all of its and the
Contractor Parties’ Records available at all reasonable hours for audit and inspection by
the State and its agents.

(c) The State shall make all requests for any audit or inspection in writing and shall provide
the Contractor with at least twenty-four (24) hours’ notice prior to the requested audit and





inspection date. If the State suspects fraud or other abuse, or in the event of an
emergency, the State is not obligated to provide any prior notice.

(d) All audits and inspections shall be at the State’s expense.

(e) The Contractor shall keep and preserve or cause to be kept and preserved all of its and
Contractor Parties’ Records until three (3) years after the latter of (i) final payment under
this Agreement, or (ii) the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, as the
same may be modified for any reason. The State may request an audit or inspection at
any time during this period. If any Claim or audit is started before the expiration of this
period, the Contractor shall retain or cause to be retained all Records until all Claims or
audit findings have been resolved.

(F) The Contractor shall cooperate fully with the State and its agents in connection with an

audit or inspection. Following any audit or inspection, the State may conduct and the
Contractor shall cooperate with an exit conference.

(9) The Contractor shall incorporate this entire Section verbatim into any contract or other
agreement that it enters into with any Contractor Party.

Protection of Confidential Information.

(@) Contractor and Contractor Parties, at their own expense, have a duty to and shall protect from
a Confidential Information Breach any and all Confidential Information which they come to
possess or control, wherever and however stored or maintained, in a commercially reasonable
manner in accordance with current industry standards.

(b) Each Contractor or Contractor Party shall develop, implement and maintain a comprehensive
data - security program for the protection of Confidential Information. The safeguards
contained in such program shall be consistent with and comply with the safeguards for
protection of Confidential Information, and information of a similar character, as set forth in all
applicable federal and state law and written policy of the Department or State concerning the
confidentiality of Confidential Information. Such data-security program shall include, but not
be limited to, the following:

(1) A security policy for employees related to the storage, access and transportation of
data containing Confidential Information;

(2) Reasonable restrictions on access to records containing Confidential Information,
including access to any locked storage where such records are kept;

(3) A process for reviewing policies and security measures at least annually;

(4) Creating secure access controls to Confidential Information, including but not limited
to passwords; and





(5) Encrypting of Confidential Information that is stored on laptops, portable devices or
being transmitted electronically.

(c) The Contractor and Contractor Parties shall notify the Department and the Connecticut
Office of the Attorney General as soon as practical, but no later than twenty-four (24) hours,
after they become aware of or suspect that any Confidential Information which Contractor or
Contractor Parties have come to possess or control has been subject to a Confidential
Information Breach. If a Confidential Information Breach has occurred, the Contractor
shall, within three (3) business days after the notification, present a credit monitoring and
protection plan to the Commissioner of Administrative Services, the Department and the
Connecticut Office of the Attorney General, for review and approval. Such credit monitoring
or protection plan shall be made available by the Contractor at its own cost and expense to all
individuals affected by the Confidential Information Breach. Such credit monitoring or
protection plan shall include, but is not limited to reimbursement for the cost of placing and
lifting one (1) security freeze per credit file pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes § 36a-
701a. Such credit monitoring or protection plans shall be approved by the State in accordance
with this Section and shall cover a length of time commensurate with the circumstances of
the Confidential Information Breach. The Contractors’ costs and expenses for the credit
monitoring and protection plan shall not be recoverable from the Department, any State of
Connecticut entity or any affected individuals.

(d) The Contractor shall incorporate the requirements of this Section in all subcontracts requiring
each Contractor Party to safeguard Confidential Information in the same manner as provided
for in this Section.

(e) Nothing in this Section shall supersede in any manner Contractor’s or Contractor Party’s
obligations pursuant to HIPAA or the provisions of this Contract concerning the obligations
of the Contractor as a Business Associate of the Department.

Financial Audit for State Grants.

For purposes of this paragraph, the word "contractor" shall be deemed to mean "nonstate entity,"
as that term is defined in Section 4-230 of the Connecticut General Statutes. The contractor shall
provide for an annual financial audit acceptable to the Department for any expenditure of state-
awarded funds made by the contractor. Such audit shall include management letters and audit
recommendations. The State Auditors of Public Accounts shall have access to all records and
accounts for the fiscal year(s) in which the award was made. The contractor will comply with
federal and state single audit standards as applicable.

Lead State Terms that shall not apply to Connecticut.

The parties hereby agree that any provision in the Standard Terms and Conditions of the
National Association of State Procurement Officials, Nevada’s Negotiated Terms and Conditions
or the Master Agreement between NASPO and awarded Contractors and any of its Exhibits,
shall not apply to Connecticut or any of the participating entities from Connecticut if the
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provision violates sovereign immunity or conflicts with this Participating Addendum. Further the
parties agree that in any instance where a provision requires the State to indemnify the
Contractor or that the parties are bound by binding arbitration that constitutes a violation of
sovereign immunity, and therefore is not applicable.
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&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group C - Wide Format Devices 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				Low
B&W
(500-10,000)		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)				Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)				High
B&W
(50,0001+)		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin

		Difference in rate for fixed rates



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		Medium
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00				$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Console		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Roll Paper Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Copy/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group C - Wide Format Devices
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of B&W Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all B&W copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		Low
B&W
(500-10,000)								0

		Low
Color/B&W
(500-10,000)								0

		Medium
B&W
(10,001-50,000)								0

		Medium
Color/B&W
(10,001-50,000)								0

		High
B&W
(50,0001+)								0

		High
Color/B&W
(50,0001+)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment C - Wide Format Devices (Black and White / Color)




_1497260614.xls
List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)		A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)		A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)		A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Internal / Wing Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Basic Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Post Process Insertion

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Facsimile Options

		Facsimile Kit

		Dual Line Option

		Additional Fax Memory

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers B&W



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)		A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)		A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)		A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers Black and White



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)				A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)				A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)				A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group A - Copier Black and White



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin

		Difference in rate for fixed rates



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers Black and White



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A3
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A6
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A9
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capaity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment A - Copier Black and White



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group A - Convenience Copiers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of B&W Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all B&W copies made after the first 30%

		A2
B&W
(20-30)								0

		A2
Color/B&W
(20-30)								0

		A3
B&W
(31-40)								0

		A3
Color/B&W
(31-40)								0

		A4
B&W
(41-69)								0

		A4
Color/B&W
(41-69)								0

		A5
B&W
(70-90)								0

		A5
Color/B&W
(70-90)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment A - Copiers Black and White




_1497260611.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group E - Digital Duplicator
SEGMENTS

				E1
(100-130)		E2
(131-150)		E3
(151-180)		E4
(181+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group E - Digital Duplicator



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group E - Digital Duplicator
SEGMENTS

				E1
(100-130)		E2
(131-150)		E3
(151-180)		E4
(181+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group E - Digital Duplicator



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group E - Digital Duplicator



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		E2				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Computer connectivity		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2000+ sheet paper capacity		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment E - Digital Duplicator




_1497260612.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group F - Scanners
SEGMENTS

				F0
(30-49)		F1
(50-59)		F2
(60-69)		F3
(70-79)		F4
(80-89)		F5
(90+)

		Make

		Model

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group F - Scanners
SEGMENTS

				F0
(30-49)		F1
(50-59)		F2
(60-69)		F3
(70-79)		F4
(80-89)		F5
(90+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group F - Scanners



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		F3				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Multifeed detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Scanning Software		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Double-sided scanning feature		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						11" X 17" scanning cabilities		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Auto Color Detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		F5				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Multifeed detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Scanning Software		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Double-sided scanning feature		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						11" X 17" scanning cabilities		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Auto Color Detection		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment F - Scanners

default:




_1497260610.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group D - Printers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				D1
B&W
(Up-20)		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)		D2
B&W
(21-40)		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)		D3
B&W
(41-60)		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Facsimile Options

		Facsimile Kit

		Dual Line Option

		Additional Fax Memory

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Warranty

		Standard Warranty

		Extended Option Warranty (please describe here)

		Service & Supplies

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group D - Printers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				D1
B&W
(Up-20)		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)		D2
B&W
(21-40)		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)		D3
B&W
(41-60)		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group D - Printers (Black and White / Color)



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		D2
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Bypass Tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						500+ sheet paper tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						USB 2.0 Connectivity		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Envelope Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						256 RAM memory		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		D2
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Bypass Tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						500+ sheet paper tray		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						USB 2.0 Connectivity		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Envelope Feeder		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						256 RAM memory		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segement D - Printers



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group D - Printers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of Color Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all Color copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		D1
B&W
(Up-20)								0

		D1
Color/B&W
(Up-20)								0

		D2
B&W
(21-40)								0

		D2
Color/B&W
(21-40)								0

		D3
B&W
(41-60)								0

		D3
Color/B&W
(41-60)								0






_1497260607.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)		A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)		A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)		A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Internal / Wing Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Basic Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Post Process Insertion

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Facsimile Options

		Facsimile Kit

		Dual Line Option

		Additional Fax Memory

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers B&W



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)		A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)		A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)		A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers Black and White



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group A - Convenience Copiers
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				A2
B&W
(20 - 30)		A2
Color/B&W
(20 - 30)				A3
B&W
(31 - 40)		A3
Color/B&W
(31 - 40)				A4
B&W
(41 - 69)		A4
Color/B&W
(41 - 69)				A5
B&W
(70 - 90)		A5
Color/B&W
(70 - 90)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group A - Copier Black and White



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group A - Copiers Black and White



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A3
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		A3
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A4
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		A4
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		A5
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capaity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		A5
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capaity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment A - Copier Black and White



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group A - Convenience Copiers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of B&W Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all B&W copies made after the first 30%

		A2
B&W
(20-30)								0

		A2
Color/B&W
(20-30)								0

		A3
B&W
(31-40)								0

		A3
Color/B&W
(31-40)								0

		A4
B&W
(41-69)								0

		A4
Color/B&W
(41-69)								0

		A5
B&W
(70-90)								0

		A5
Color/B&W
(70-90)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment A - Copiers Black and White




_1497260608.xls
MSRP List Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91-119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)		B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)		B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)		B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine

		Paper Handling

		ADF

		RADF

		Scan Station

		Platen Cover

		Color Scanner

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Paper Feeding

		Base Cabinet

		Additional Paper Drawer

		Paper-Feed Units

		Bypass Paper Supply

		Large Capacity Tray

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Finishing

		Output Tray

		Internal / Wing Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Basic Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Office Finisher

		3 - Hole Punch

		Saddle Stitch Finishing

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Post Process Insertion

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Connectivity / Security

		Network Connectivity Kit

		Hard Drive Security Kit

		Network Security Kit

		Power Protection Unit

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Options

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Accessibility Option (please describe here)

		Software Options

		Advanced Scanning Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advanced Scanning Interface Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Simple Account Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Advance Accounting Software

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)

		Additional Option (please describe here)



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20List Pricing Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Discount From MSRP 

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91-119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)		B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)		B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)		B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

		Make

		Model

		Marking Engine - Discount

		Accessories (Paper Handling, Paper Feeding, Finishing, Facsimile) Discount

		Connecivity / Security Discount

		Accessibility Options Discount

		Software Discount

		NOTE:  Discount must be shown in percent format.



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Discount from MSRP Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Service - Supplies Pricing

		Vendor Name:

		Pricing Item		Group B - Production Copiers 
Includes B&W and Color/B&W
SEGMENTS

				B6
B&W
(91 - 119)		B6
Color/B&W
(91 - 119)				B7
B&W
(120-139)		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)				B8
B&W
(140-159)		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)				B9
B&W
(160+)		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)

						Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W				Color		B&W

		Make

		Model

		Zero Base Service and Supplies Pricing

		Optional Included Impression Pricing

		Option #1 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #1 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #1 Overage Rate

		Option #2 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #2 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #2 Overage Rate

		Option #3 Included Base Number Impressions

		Option #3 Monthly Base Charge

		Option #3 Overage Rate

		Additional Service and Supplies Options

		Increase in rate for inclusion of staples

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 5 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 1 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 2 x 7 coverage

		Base monthly charge for 3 x 7 coverage

		Additonal Labor Components

		Additonal End User Training Cost by hours

		Additonal Advanced / IT Training Cost by hours

		Additonal IT Support by hours

		Percentage increase in Service and Supplies Rate by Service Zone

		Percentage Increase for Rural Zone

		Percentage Increase for Remote Zone

		Moving Charges by Zone

		Zone 2 - Flat Fee

		Zone 3 Per mile fee



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Service and Supplies Pricing Worksheet&14
Group B - Copiers Color



Leasing Rates

		Vendor Name:

		Standard Financing Terms (Months)		Fair Market Value		Operational Lease		Non-Cancelable Rental		Capital Lease		Short Term Rental		Cancelable Rental

		18

		24

		36

		48

		60

		Fixed Margin



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Leasing Rates Worksheet&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Group B - Copiers Color



Configuration Cost

		Vendor Name:

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B6
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		B6
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B7
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		B7
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Print/Scan		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		Segment		Model		Configuration		Suggested Retail Price		Discount (% off)		Discounted Price

		B9
B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capacity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

		B9
Color/B&W				Complete Unit                                         (includes base unit and custom features)		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Itemized Custom Features:

						Base Unit		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Automatic Document Feeder - duplexing		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						2/3 Hole Punch		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						Finisher - Stapling		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00

						High Capacity Paper Tray - Min 2000 pages		$0.00		0.00%		$0.00



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Configuration Cost&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment B - Copiers Color



Cost-Per-Copy

		Vendor Name:

		Group B - Production Copiers 
B&W and Color/B&W
Segments		Monthly Volume Range		Monthly Target Volume		CPC for First 30% of Color Volume		 First 30% of Volume		CPC for all Color copies made after the first 30%		CPC for each Color copy made

		B6
B&W
(91-119)								0

		B6
Color/B&W
(91-119)								0

		B7
B&W
(120-139)								0

		B7
Color/B&W
(120-139)								0

		B8
B&W
(140-159)								0

		B8
Color/B&W
(140-159)								0

		B9
B&W
(160+)								0

		B9
Color/B&W
(160+)								0



&C&"Calibri,Bold"&20Cost Per Copy (CPC)&"Calibri,Regular"&11
&"Calibri,Bold"&14Segment B - Copiers Color
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